APPENDIX

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

REGARDING THE
SELECTED

SYSTEM
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EVALUATION OF RECYCLING

The following provides additional information regarding implementation and evaluations of
various components of the Selected System.

Mason County’s volume of materials being used and recycled are at the levels they are due
to strong programs provided by local units of government that make it easy for their
residents to participate in recycling programs. Curbside recycling programs provided by the
Cities of Ludington and Scottville and Pere Marquette Charter Township allow their
citizens to recycle paper, plastics, corrugated containers, glass and metals with very limited
amounts of effort. This ease of participation increases the support by citizens and amounts
- of materials actually being collected. Drop off sites provided by Hamlin and Summit
Township also provide their citizens with a year round recycling program. Citizens in other
areas of the county have the ability to take their recycled materials to the Waste Reduction
System (The Transfer Station) site in Mason County and the Manistee County Landfill Inc.

site in Manistee County.

Private enterprise also aids in the recycling process with Padnos Iron & Metal providing a
market for scrap metal, Towns Brothers Construction Company providing a location to
recycle concrete, brick and cement materials, Pallet Recycle Inc. providing a location for the
recycling of wooden pallets and Nichols Drug Store, Mason County District Library and
Briggs True Value all provide a location for the recycling of empty printer cartridges.

Another factor in the amount of materials recycled is the strong desire by county residents
to maintain the quality of life that Mason County affords its residents. This desire to
maintain the natural beauty and environment spurs the community to a higher level of

participation in recycling programs.

The selected system continues all the cufrent programs and strives to add the paper
recycling program provided by Lakeshore Enterprises.
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DETAILED FEATURES OF RECYCLING AND COMPOSTING PROGRAMS:
List below the types and volumes of material available for recycling or composting,

The Mason County Solid Waste Planning Committee does not know what types and/or
volumes of recyclable material are available in the waste stream. The County of Mason has
not performed a waste characterization study. Estimates can be made using national
averages for rural counties. These estimates do not take into account any industrial or
commercial waste generation or recycling. The estimates for the County of Mason are as

follows:

Paper 5,572 tons per year
Glass 1,254 tons per year
Metal 1,254 tons per year
Plastics 279 tons per year
Rubber and leather 279 tons per year
Textiles 279 tons per year
Wood 418 tons per year
Food Waste 2,368 tons per year
Yard Waste 1,811 tons per year
Misc. organics 418 tons per year

The following briefly describes the processes used or to be used to select the equipment and
locations of the recycling and composting programs included in the Selected System.
Difficulties encountered during past selection processes are also summarized along with

how those problems were addressed:

Equipment Selection - Not applicable

The County of Mason’s selected solid waste handling system does not include equipment
selection or the location of existing or proposed recycling programs. These locations and
the equipment to be used will be selected by the Cities and Townships providing the service
to their citizens. In the Townships not providing the service to their citizens, any private
hauling or recycling company that offers the service will select their equipment.
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Site Availability & Selection Not applicable

The County of Mason’s selected solid waste handling system does not include equipment
selection or the location of existing or proposed recycling programs. These locations and
the equipment to be used will be selected by the Cities and Townships providing the service
to their citizens. In the Townships, not providing the service to their citizens, any private
hauling or recycling company that offers the service will select their equipment.

Existing Programs:

Proposed Programs:
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Composting Operating Parameters:

The following identifies some of the operating parameters which are to be used or are
planned to be used to monitor the composting programs.

No formal composting programs are included as part of the selected solid waste
management system. Existing yard waste management programs are operated on a very
limited basis. Product is used locally or for municipal use only.

Existing Programs:

Program Name: pH Range Heat Range Other Parameter Measurement Unit

Proposed Programs:

Program Name: pH Range Heat Range Other Parameter Measurement Unit

A-4
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COORDINATION EFFORTS:

Solid Waste Management Plans need to be developed and implemented with due regard for
both local conditions and the state and federal regulatory framework for protecting public
health and the quality of the air, water, and land. The following states the ways in which
coordination will be achieved to minimize potential conflicts with other programs and, if

possible, to enhance those programs.

It may be necessary to enter into various types of agreements between public and private
sectors to be able to implement the various components of this solid waste management
system. The known existing arrangements are described below which are considered
necessary to successfully implement this system within the County. In addition, proposed
arrangements are recommended which address any discrepancies that the existing
arrangements may have created or overlooked. Since arrangements may exist between two
or more private parties that are not public knowledge, this section may not be
comprehensive of all the arrangements within the County. Additionally, it may be necessary
to cancel or enter into new or revised arrangements as conditions change during the
planning period. The entities responsible for developing, approving, and enforcing these
arrangements are also noted.

The selected system would be to continue the current system of local units of government
arranging the necessary agreements and organizational arrangements and structures which
provide for public and/or private operation of solid waste collection, processing and
disposal within their jurisdictions.

The County of Mason would continue to arrange the inter county agreements that allow
solid waste material to be imported and exported into and out of Mason County.

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee and the Designated
Planning Agency would be responsible for the oversight of the landfill siting criteria.

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee is responsible for the
planning of standards and methods to be considered for the processing and disposal of solid
waste. These standards and methods will be presented to the Mason County Board of
Commissioners for approval. The Committee will assist local units of government in the
planning of their solid waste disposal systems.

The Mason County Board of Commissioners has the ultimate authority for implementing
the plan, authorizing solid waste agreements and allocating funds.
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COSTS & FUNDING:

The following estimates the necessary management, capital, and operational and
maintenance requirements for each applicable component of the solid waste management
system. In addition, potential funding sources have been identified to support those

components.

System Component' Estimated Costs Potential Funding
Sources |
Resource Conservation Efforts None Private Enterprises
Resource Recovery Programs None Private Enterprises
Volume Reduction Techniques None Private Enterprises
Collection Processes None Local units of government &
" users of the service
Transportation None Private Enterprises
Disposal Areas None Private Enterprises
Future Disposal Area Uses None Private Enterprises
Management Arrangements $1,000 Annually Mason County Board of
Commissioners
Educational &
Informational Programs $3,000 Mason County Board of
Commissioners, MSU
Extension & Mason Lake
Conservation District

These components and their subcomponents may vary with each system.

AT
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EVALUATION SUMMARY OF THE SELECTED SYSTEM:

The solid waste management system has been evaluated for anticipated positive and
negative impacts on the public health, economics, environmental conditions, siting
considerations, existing disposal areas, and energy consumption and production which
would occur as a result of implementing this Selected System. In addition, the Selected
System was evaluated to determine if it would be technically and economically feasible,
whether the public would accept this Selected System, and the effectiveness of the
educational and informational programs. Impacts to the resource recovery programs
created by the solid waste collection system, local support groups, institutional
arrangements, and the population in the County in addition to market availability for the
collected materials and the transportation network were also considered. Impediments to
implementing the solid waste management system are identified and proposed activities
which will help overcome those problems are also addressed to assure successful programs.
The Selected System was also evaluated as to how it relates to the Michigan Solid Waste
Policy's goals. The following summarizes the findings of this evaluation and the basis for

selecting this system:

Alternative #1 has been chosen as the selected system. The selected system is the system
that has been in place since the Mason County Landfill closed in 1997. The general public
is in agreement with this system and the manner in which it is operated. The Committee
believes that acceptance of this system will continue to be positive. The selected system is
not anticipated to have a negative impact during the five year or ten year periods on either
public health, economics, environmental conditions, siting considerations, existing disposal
areas or energy consumption and production. The County of Mason’s experience over the
past year indicates that this is the case. It is a technically and financially feasible system for

our residents.

Recycling will continue to be offered in the curbside and drop off site venue through
contracts between local units of government and private enterprises. Efforts will be made
to expand the recycling opportunities by working with Lakeshore Enterprises in their efforts
to expand their programs to Mason County. Lakeshore Enterprises could provide an
additional educational function to the county’s school districts.

Hazardous Material Collection Days will be continued to be offered to county residents
through the efforts of non profit organizations, private enterprise and governmental units.

Composting opportunities will be offered by both cities and the charter township on a
limited basis.

Landfill siting criteria have been added that will provide public health and environmental
safeguards in any future landfill project.
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EVALUATION SUMMARY CONTINUED:

Not Applicable

A-9
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ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF THE SELECTED SYSTEM:

Each solid waste management system has pros and cons relating to its implementation
within the County. The following is an outline of the major advantages and disadvantages

for this Selected System.,

ADVANTAGES:

1.

9.

Addresses the needs of the residents of Mason County.
Offers a household hazardous materials collection.

Offers more than one landfill for residents and private haulers to use.

Encourages composting,

. Continues and could improve recycling programs.

Is a cost effective system for the county taxpayers.
It has a track record of success in the County.
It uses the free market system to provide solid waste services.

Establishes new landfill siting criteria

DISADVANTAGES:

L.

2.

3.

4.

5.

)

Limited recycling programs in the more rural areas of the County.
Lack of markets to reduce the cost of recycling programs.
Lack of funds for additional educational programs.

Lack of a landfill site within the county.

A-10
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NON-SELECTED
SYSTEMS

Before selecting the solid waste management system contained within this Plan update, the
County developed and considered other alternative systems. The details of the non-selected
systems are available for review in the County's repository. The following section provides
a brief description of these non-selected systems and an explanation why they were not
selected. Complete one evaluation summary for each non-selected alternative system.
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SYSTEM COMPONENTS:

Alternatives #2 and #3 were the non-selected systems. The following briefly describes the
various components of the non-selected system.

RESOURCE CONSERVATION EFFORTS:

Alternative #2 would be to continue the current system of not addressing these issues
directly with the public or state and federal legislators.

VOLUME REDUCTION TECHNIQUES:

Alternative #2 would be to centralize the compacting and baling operations at a multi-
county material recovery facility or MRF.

Alternative #3 would be to develop a multi-county incinerator to reduce the volume of
‘materials that would require landfilling.

RESOURCE RECOVERY PROGRAMS:

Alternative #2 would be to develop a multi-county material recovery facility or MRF. The
facility would separate the recycling, composting and solid waste materials on site.
Processing of the mixed waste stream would include hand sorting, screening, gravity and
magnetic separation. This would increase the amount of recycled materials recovered from

the solid waste stream.
COLLECTION PROCESSES AND TRANSPORTATION:

Alternative #2 would be for local units of government to directly provide the collection and
transportation process.

Alternative #3 would be for local units of government to allow individuals to directly
contract with various private haulers for the collection and transportation of solid waste,
composting materials and recycling materials.

DISPOSAL AREAS:

Alternative #2 would be to encourage private enterprise to develop, construct and operate a
private landfill in Mason County.

Alternative #3 would be for the County of Mason to develop, construct and operate a
public landfill in Mason County either by itself or in conjunction with neighboring counties.
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INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS:

Alternative # 2 would be for local units of government to authorize the County of Mason to
assume the authority to arrange the necessary agreements and organizational arrangements
and structures which provide for public and/or private operation of solid waste collection,
processing and disposal within their jurisdictions thereby centralizing solid waste jurisdiction

at the county level.
EDUCATIONAL AND INFORMATIONAL PROGRAMS:

Alternative #2 would increase the availability of educational and informational programs
that would promote recycling, waste reduction and composting.

RECYCLING AND COMPOSTING PROGRAMS:

Alternative #2 would be for the County of Mason to provide recycling and composting
programs to the citizens of townships not currently providing these services.

Alternative #3 would be for local units of government to authorize the County of Mason to
assume the authority of providing recycling and composting programs to the citizens within
their jurisdictions thereby centralizing recycling and composting jurisdiction at the county

level.

CAPITAL. OPERATIONAL, AND MAINTENANCE COSTS:

Development costs of a 10 acre landfill site - $7,902,000, Operation and Maintenance costs
of a 10 acre landfill site - $14,280,000, Post-Closure costs of a 10 acre landfill site» -

$1,674,000.

Development costs of a 10,000 tons per year Transfer Station Site - $335,000, Building and
site. work costs of a 10,000 tons per year Transfer Station Site - $928,000, Mobile
Equipment and Rolling Stock costs of a 10,000 tons per year Transfer Station Site -

$286,000, Annual Operation and Maintenance costs of a 10,000 tons per year Transfer
Station Site - $291,000.

Estimated costs of expanded education program - $3,000.

B-3
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EVALUATION SUMMARY OF NON-SELECTED SYSTEM:

The non-selected system was evaluated to determine its potential of impacting human
health, economics, environmental, transportation, siting and energy resources of the
County. In addition, it was reviewed for technical feasibility, and whether it would have
public support. Following is a brief summary of that evaluation along with an explanation
why this system was not chosen to be implemented. :

Alternatives #2 and #3 would result in a solid waste system that was operated by county
government rather than by free market forces. These systems would give the county greater
control over the solid waste system and the services provided under the system. This
system was tried in the past by the County of Mason and resulted in huge deficits and
unfunded post closure costs. A small rural county can not operate a landfill or incinerator in

a cost effective manner.
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ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF THE NON-SELECTED SYSTEM:

Each solid waste management system has pros and cons relating to its implementation
within the County. The following is a summary of the major advantages and disadvantages

for this nonselected system.

ADVANTAGES:

1. More educational programs.

2. More competition and solid‘ waste options for the citizens.
3. Alandfill located within the county.

4. A more centralized solid wasté system.

5. More recycling options for the more rural areas of the county.

8.

DISADVANTAGES:

- 1. Cost prohibitive to the county tax payers.

2. Disruption of the free market system.

3. Lack of political support from the county government.
4,

5.

B-5
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

AND APPROVAL

The following summarizes the processes which were used in the development and local
approval of the Plan including a summary of public participation in those processes,
documentation of each of the required approval steps, and a description of the appointment
of the solid waste management planning committee along with the members of that

committee.

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE APPOINTED:
The Solid Waste Management Planning Committee was appointed by the County Board of
Commissioners on several dates in 1997, 1998 and 1999. All of the meetings were public

meetings and the public was allowed to comment at all meetings.

PREPARATION OF THE PLAN BY THE SWMPC:
The Solid Waste Management Planning Committee held a total of thirteen public meetings
from March 31, 1998 to June 29, 1999, to prepare the draft Plan. At each meeting time

was allotted for Public Comment.

PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD AUTHORIZED BY THE SWMPC:

At a Public meeting held on June 29, 1999, and by a vote of 8 in favor and 0 against, the
Solid Waste Management Planning Committee authorized the 90 day public review period
to begin on July 2, 1999. Again, time was allotted for Public Comment. .

PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD July 2. 1999 TO September 30, 1999:
A public hearing was conducted on September 30, 1999. Time was allotted for Public

Comment.

APPROVAL OF THE PLAN BY THE SWMPC:

At a Public meeting held on December 28, 1999, and by a unanimous roll call vote 12 in
favor and 0 against, the Solid Waste Management Planning Committee approved the Plan
with the noted corrections at this meeting. Again, time was allotted for Public Comment.

APPROVAL OF THE PLAN BY THE COUNTY BOARD:

At the regular monthly meeting of the Mason County Board of Commissioners on January
12, 2000, the Board of Commissioners approved the Plan by a vote of 9 in favor and 0
against, and authorized the release of the plan to all the other units of government in Mason
County for their consideration. Again, time was allotted for Public Comment.

C-1
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROCESS: A description of the process used, including dates
of public meetings, copies of public notices, documentation of approval from the solid
waste planning committee, County board of commissioners, and municipalities.

The Plan Update was prepared by the Designated Planning Agency (the Mason County
Administrator), with assistance from the Mason County Solid Waste Planning Committee,
the Administrator’'s Administrative Assistant and the General Public. A notice of each
meeting was sent to the chief elected officer of each local unit of government in Mason
County. At each public meeting, time was allocated for Public Comments. A copy of the

agenda for each meeting involving the Plan Update is outlined below and attached.

Date
March 31, 1998
April 28, 1998
May 26, 1998
June 30, 1998
July 28, 1998
August 25, 1998
September 29, 1998
October 27, 1998
November 24, 1998
February 23, 1999
April 27, 1999
May 25, 1999
June 29, 1999
September 30, 1999
October 26, 1999

November 30, 1999

December 28, 1999

C-2
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Type of Meeting
Committee organizational meeting
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan »
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of the update of the Solid
Waste Plan
Held a Public Hearing on the Solid
Waste Plan
Discussion of public comments on
Solid Waste Plan
Discussion of public comments on
Solid Waste Plan
Approval of the Solid Waste Plan




PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on March 31, 1998 at
1:00 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
MARCH 31, 1998

1:00 PM

. Roll call
. Approval of Agenda

. Election of officers

. Approval of the Minutes of the September 30, 1997 meeting
. Reading of correspondence

. Public Comments

. Discussion of the plan update

. Any unfinished business

. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

{

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on April 28, 1998 at
1:00 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.
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Thomas M. Posma
Chairman

Ronald E. Sandefs
Vice Chairman

Ivan J. Anthony
County Clerk

Fabian L. Knizacky
Administrator

Harold Madden
District 1

Michael G. Schneider
District 2

John E. Henderson
District 3

James L. Pinkerton
District 4

( 1@ Rybicki

. Jistrict §

Thomas M. Posma
District 6

Charles Eberbach
District 7

Ronald E. Sanders
District 8

Robert A. Genson
District 9

| Mason County
Board of Commissioners

Court House
304 E. Ludington Ave., Ludington, Michigan 49431

MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

PLANNING COMMITTEE
AGENDA
APRIL 28, 1998
1:00 PM
. Roll call
. Approval of Agenda

. Approval of the Minutes of the March 31, 1998 meeting
. Reading of correspondence
. Public Comments

. Vacant position update

. General Discussion of Solid Waste Plan Update
. Any unfinished business

. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on May 26 1998 at
1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
MAY 26,1998

1:30 PM

. Rollcall

. Approval of Agenda

. Approval of the Minutes of the April 28, 1998 meeting
. Reading of éorrespondence

. Public Comments

. Introduction of new member Ralph Hendrick

. Discussion of the landfill siting criteria

. Any unfinished business

. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on June 30, 1998 at
1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.
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Thomas M. Posma
Chairman

Ronald E. Sanders
Vice Chairman

Ivan J. Anthony
County Clerk

Fabian L. Knizacky
Administrator

Harold Madden
District 1

Michael G. Schneider

District 2
John E. Henderson
District 3
James L. Pinkerton
~Pistrict 4
JL  ; Rybicki
~wistrict 5
Thomas M. Posma
District 6
Charles Eberbach
-District 7
Ronald E. Sanders
District 8
Robert A. Genson
District 9

6.

7.

Mason County
Board of Commissioners

Court House
304 E. Ludington Ave., Ludington, Michigan 49431

MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
JUNE 30,1998

1:30 PM

. Roll call

Approval of Agenda

Approval of the Minutes of the May 26, 1998 meeting
Reading of correspondence

Public Comments

Introduction of new member Ralph Hendrick

Review of the draft of the Landfill Siting criteria as submitted by the sub-

committee

8.

9.

Any unfinished business

Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on July 28, 1998 at
1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
JULY 28, 1998

1:30 PM

1. Roll call

. Approval of Agenda

[\

. Approval of the Minutes of the June 30, 1998 meeting

W

4. Reading of correspondence

5. Public Comments

6. Discussion of the importation and exportation of solid and the related agreements with other
counties at this meeting.

7. Per Diem
8. Any unfinished business

9. Adjournment

111



PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on August 25, 1998 (
at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service ‘
Building.

Posted August 13, 1998 at 8:45 AM.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
AUGUST 25, 1998

1:30 PM

1. Roll call

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Approval of the Minutes of the July 28, 1998 meeting
4. Reading of correspondence

5. Public Comments

6. Discussion of the importation and exportation of solid and the related agreements with other
. counties at this meeting.

7. Discussion about recycling, reuse, composting, reduction and waste-to-energy.
8. Any unfinished business

9. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on September ?9,
1998 at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service
Building.

Posted September 10, 1998 at 12:30 PM.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
SEPTEMBER 29, 1998

1:30 PM

1. Roll call

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Approval of the Minuteé of the August 25, 1998 meeting
4. Reading of correspondence

5. Public Comments

6. Discussion of the importation and exportation of solid and the related agreements with other
. counties at this meeting.

7. Discussion about recycling, reuse, composting, reduction and waste-to-energy.
8. Any unfinished business

9. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on October 27, 1998
at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service
Building,
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6.

7.

MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
OCTOBER 27,1998

1:30 PM

. Roll call

Approval of Agenda

Approval of the Minutes of the September 29, 1998 meeting
Reading of correspondence

Public Comments

Lakeshore Enterprises presentation

Update on the importation and exportation of solid and the related agreements with other

counties at this meeting.

8.

9.

10.

Discussion about recycling, reuse, composting, reduction and waste-to-energy.
Any unfinished business

Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on November 24,
1998 at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service
Building.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
NOVEMBER 24, 1998

1:30 PM

. Roll call

Approval of Agenda
Approval of the Minutes of the October 27, 1998 meeting
Reading of correspondence

Public Comments

Update on the importation and exportation of solid and the related agreements with other

counties at this meeting.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Discussion about recycling, reuse, composting, reduction and waste-to-energy.
Discussion about the county overview portion of the plan
Any unfinished business

Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on February 23, 1999
at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service
Building.

Posted February 12, 1999 at 1:17 PM. - ‘
{;st. = %
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
FEBRUARY 23, 1999

1:30 PM

1. Roll call

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Approval of the Minutes of the November 24, 1998 meeting
4. Reading of correspondence

5. Public Comments

6. Update on the importation and exportation of solid and the related agrecements with other
. counties at this meeting and consideration of agreements.

7. Review of draft section of the plan update
8. Any unfinished business

9. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on April 27, 1999 at
1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.

Posted April 16, 1999 at 7:57-AM.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
APRIL 27,1999

1:30 PM

. Roll call

. Approval of Agenda

. Approval of the Minutes of the February 23, 1999 meeting
. Reading of correspondence

. Public Comments

. Review of plan update draft

. Any unfinished business

. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

-~

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on May 25, 1999 at
1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.

Posted April 30, 1999 at 3:00 PM.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
MAY 25, 1999

1:30 PM

. Roll call

Approval of Agenda

Approval of the Minutes‘of the April 27, 1999 meeting

. Reading of correspondence

Public Comments
Update on reciprocal agreements

Review of plan update draft

. Review of the approval process for plan

Any unfinished business

Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committec will meet on June 29, 1999 at {
1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service Building.

Posted June 17, 1999 at 5:20 PM.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
JUNE 29, 1999

1:30 PM

. Roll call

Approval of Agenda

. Approval of the Minutes of the May 25, 1999 meeting

Reading of correspondence

Public Comments

. Review of plan update draft

Approval of plan update
Review of the approv.al process for plan
Any unfinished business

Adjournment
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Affidavit of Publication

STATE OF MICHIGAN
SS

County of Mason

NOTICE OF

PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT PERIOD
for the proposed update of the
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN
Notice is Hereby Given pursuant to Part 115 of the Natural Resources
and Environmental Protection Act, being Act 451 of 1994, that the
Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee does
hereby initiate a ninety day public review and comment period
regarding a proposed update to the approved Mason County Solid
Waste Management Plan. *

Notice is Further Given that the proposed amendment will be
available for copying and/or review and comment through September
30, 1999 at the office of the Mason County Administrator located at
304 E. Ludington Avenue, Ludington, Michigan weekdays during
normal business hours. Written comments concerning the proposed
update may be submitted to Fabian L. Knizacky, Mason County
Administrator, 304 E. Ludington Avenue, Ludington, Michigan 49431.

Dated at Ludington, Michigan this 2nd day of July, 1999.
Fablan L. Knizacky

Mason County Administrator

Alan H. Nichols being first duly sworn,
says that he is the business manager of
the Ludington Daily News, adaily newspa-
per printed and circulated in said county of
Mason, and that annexed hereto is a copy
of a certain order taken from said newspa-
per, in which the order was published on
the following dates, to wit:

July 2, 1999

(82 427 2\

(Business Manager)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this

2nd day of __ July

AD. 19

/ 7¢ML_. 4’/5’62/

" Notary Public for Mason County

Commission Expires
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

PLANNING COMMITTEE
AGENDA
SEPTEMBER 30, 1999
7:30 PM
. Welcome
. Opening of Public Hearing

. Reading of Correspondence
. Public Comments

Closing of Public Hearing

. Adjournment
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Affidavit of Publication

-~

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING AND COMMENT PERIOD
for the proposed update of the

MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN
Notice is Hereby Glven pursuant to Part 115 of the Natural Resources
and Environmentai Protection Act. being Act 451 of 1994, that the
Mason County Solld Waste Management Planning Committee will
hold a Public Hearing for the purpose of receiving comments on the
proposed update to the approved Mason County Solid Waste
Management Plan on Thursday, September 30, 1999 at the Mason
County Courthouse, 304 E. Ludington Avenue, Ludington, Michigan
beginning at 7:30 p.m.

Notice is Further Given that the proposed update will continue to be
avallable for copying and/or review and comment through
September 30, 1999 at the office of the Mason County Administrator
located at 304 E. Ludington Avenue, Ludington, Michigan weekdays
during normal business hours. Written comments concerning the
proposed update may be submitted to Fabian L Knizacky, Mason
County Admlnls’fra'ror, 304 E. Ludington Avenue, Ludlngfon, Mlchlgcn
49431,

Dated at Ludington, Mlchlgcn this 26th day of August, 1999,
Fablan L. Knizacky

Mason County Administrator

e
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STATE OF MICHIGAN
SS

County of Mason

Alan H. Nichols being first duly sworn,
says that he is the business manager of
the Ludington Daily News, adaily newspa-
per printed and circulated in said county of
Mason, and that annexed hereto is a copy
of a certain order taken from said newspa-
per, in which the order was published on
the following dates, to wit:

August 26, 1999
August 27, 1999

@z« A

(Business Manager)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this

30th day of August

m QL OG-0y

0 lﬂotér} Public for Mason County

Commission Expires
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF MASON

PUBLIC HEARING and COMMENT PERIOD

for the proposed

MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

Mason County Courthouse
304 East Ludington Avenue
Ludington, Michigan, 49431

Thursday, September 30, 1999 - 7:30 p.m.

APPEARANCES:

County Administrator
From the Designated
Planning Agency:

Solid Waste Management
Planning Committee:

Genergl Public:

Reported By:

Fabian Knizacky

Norman Letsinger
John Kreinbrink
Ralph Hendrick
James Riffle

Tom Merchant
Larry Kivela
Jerome Rybicki
Gilbert Larsen

Don Jesuale

Ms. Debra Morgan
CSR 5743, CER, RPR

Official Court Reporter
51st Judicial Circuit Ct
304 E. Ludington Avenue

Ludington, MI, 49431
(231) 845-0516

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, RPR
OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER

131




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Ludington, Michigan

(Proceedings convene on Thursday, September 30, 1999

at 7:30 p.m.)

MR. LETSINGER: I just want to welcome everybody. I
want to express a few thanks to Mr. Fabian for his
support, his timely carrying out the correspbndence that
we needed done, and bringing the documents together for
us. I really appreciate that.

I wanted to thank our vice, chairman of vice, Mr.
Riffle, for his kind leadership in my absence at times.
And Tom, where is Tom? Tom, you have done a great job as
far as acting, I guess you were the secretary, not just
acting secretary. We didn’t have a treasurer though.

MR. RYBICKI: Didn‘’t trust us with one.

MR. LETSINGER: And I want to thank everybody for
your promptness and attendance at our meetings. That
really helped. And I really appreciate it. .

And I quess it won’t take long for opening remarks
from the public. And you have some correspondence to
share with us?

MR. KNIZACKY: Mr. Chairman, I think it would be in
order to ask for a motion to open the public hearing.

MR. RYBICKI: I‘ll make a motion, Jerome Rybicki;
I’1]1 make a motion to go into public hearing.

MR. LETSINGER: Is there a second?

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, CER
OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER
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MR. MERCHANT: Tom Merchant, second.

MR. LETSINGER: Any discussion? All those in favor
of us opening our public hearing, let it be known with the
word "aye"? |

MULTIPLE VOICES: Aye.

MR. LETSINGER: All right. Now we’re official. You
have some correspondence for us?

MR. KNIZACKY: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I do. The first
piece of correspondence is from Pere Marquette Charter
Township.

"This letter is to advise you that the Pere
Marquette Charter Township Planning Commission has
reviewed the Draft Update to the Mason County Solid Waste
Management Plan and finds that it incorporates each of
those sections of this Township’s Zoning Ordinance
requested in our letter of June 3rd, 1999."

"Since these sections address each of the
Commission’s concerns reéarding the siting and operation
of solid waste facilities in the Township, the Commission
considers the Draft Update submitted to Joanne Kelley for
review on July 2nd, 1999 acceptable as written."

"The Township éppreciates the opportunity to review
and comment on the Draft Update. If you have any
questions regarding the Township’s views or comments on

the update, please feel free to call on James Nordlund,
3

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, CER
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Jr. who oversaw the Commission’s review. He can be
regched at 843-3485."

"Sincerely, Pere Marquette Charter Township,
Planning Commission. John Messer, secretary."

Our second piece of correspondence is from Washtenaw
County, Public Works Division, Susan Todd.

"Please be advised that Washtenaw County has
released its Draft Solid Waste Management Plan update for
the 90 day public review period. 1In the spirit of waste
prevention, I have included only the executive summary and
Import/Export section of the Plan for your review.
However, I would be happy to forward a full copy of the
Plan upon request."” |

"Written comments on the Draft Plan will be accepted

until November 9th, 1999 and should be sent to the

- following: Washtenaw County Public Works; Attention Susan

Todd, Solid Waste Coordinator; P.O. Box 8645, Ann Arbor,

Michigan, 48107-8645."

"A public hearing is scheduled for Tuesday, October

' 19th, 1999 at seven o’clock p.m. at the Washtenaw

Intermediate School District Building,klocatéd’at 1819
South Wagner Road in Ann Arbor. Anyone wishing to provide
verbal comments on the Draft Plan will be able to do so at
this hearing."

"Additional information on the Washtenaw County

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, CER
OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER
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Solid Waste Planning process can be found on the
Committee’s web-site at:
http://www.co.washtenaw.mi.us/depts/eis/swp;/eisswpc.htm."
fPlease contact me at 734-994-2398 if you have any
questions on the_enclosed materials. Thank you."

And then attached to the letter is the executive
summary and the Import/Export section of the Plan, which I
will not read but is available for anybody who would like
to review it. The pertinent thing to our Plan is they do
list Mason County as an Export/Import County in their
Plan.

Next piece of correspondence is from Muskegon County,
Public Works Board.

"Muske;on County Solid Waste Planning Committee has
completed its Draft of the Muskegon County Solid Waste
Plan Update. Attached is the executive summary as well as
the pertinent information regarding Import and Export
authorizations."

"If you have comments or questions on this material

or if you desire a complete copy of the Draft Plan, please

feel free to contact me at 231-724-6525. Thank you. From
Robert Ribbens, the Environmental Planner."

Again the executive summary has been attached.
Import/Export authorizations is attached. and I‘1ll not

read those but they are available for review.

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, CER
OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER

135



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

The thing that is critical to our Plan is the fact
that Muskegon County has authorized Import/Export to Mason
County, which we have not done in our Plan at this point.
And we may want to consider adding that as we review the
public comments that we have received on the Plan.

Our next correspondence is from Emmet County Solid
Waste, Department of Public Works.

"The Emmet County Public Waste Planning Committee
has completed the Emmet County Solid Waste Management Plan
Update. The Plan has been locally approved and has been
submitted to the Michigan Department of Environmental
Quality for review. Enclosed please find the executive
summary as well as information regarxding Import and Export
authorizations."

"Since Emmet County listed all Michigan Counties
under the Future Export Volume Authorization of Solid
Waste Contingents on New Facilities Being Sited, I wanted
to make sure that you had a copy of the critical elements
of our Plan. We have taken many steps towards providing
cost effective, comprehensive resource recovery programs
and built-in incentives to reduce waste and encourage
recycling. We look forward to networking with other
Counties who are taking measures to increase solid waste
disposal options, resource recovery programs, and other

proactive proposals to Solid Waste Management."

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, CER
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"If you are interested in receiving a complete copy

enclosed materials, please feel free to contact this
office at 231-348-0640. And that is from Elisa Seltzer."

And again, Emmet County is not listed in‘our County’s
Plan for Import/Export authorizations. And they are
listing us in their Plan.’ And again, we may want to
consider adding those, them, to our Plan, excuse me.

And then our final piece of correspondence is from
Jeffery Woolstrum of the law offices of Honigman, Miller,
Schwartz, and Cohn.

"We are attorneys representing the Michigan Waste
Industries Association, ‘MWIA‘. MWIA is a Michigan
nonprofit c;rporation representing approximately 50
individual Michigan based solid waste companies, some of
which operate within Mason County. MWIA submits the
enclosed document ‘Comments’ for inclusion in the
administrative record of public comments on Mason County’s
Splid Waste Management Plan Update, thg”Plan'.“

"The Comments address MWIA'’s concernskwith certain
provisions that may be contained in the Plan that exceed
Mason County’s authority. Mason County does not have
unlimited authority to include provisions in a Solid Waste
Management Plan. Rather, Mason County only has such

powers that have been granted by the Michigan

e

of Emmet County’s Plan or if you have any questions on the '
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Legislature."”

"Although the Legislature authorizes the Mason
County to prepare a Solid Waste Management Plan under Part
115 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection
Act, ‘Part 115/ in parentheses, Mason County may only
include in the Plan those provisions that are expressly
identified in Part 115 or the administrative rules
promulgated by the Michigan Department of Environmental
Quality, ‘MDEQ’ under Part 115, ‘the Part 115 Rules’. The
provisions discussed in the Comments are not clearly,
excuse me, the provisions discussed in the Comments are
clearly not authorized under Part 115 or the Part 115
Rules."

"To the extent the Plan contains any of the
provisions discussed in the Comments or incorporate such
provisions into the Plan by reference to other documents,
MWIA requests that Mason County either: One, revise the
Plan to eliminate the offending provisions; or two,
provide a written response to MWIA‘s concerns in the
Plan’s appendix, as required by Rule 711(g} of Part 115
Rules, which sets forth the basis for retaining such
provisions in the Plan. Please feel free to call me with
any questions regarding MWIA‘s Comments."

And I will not read the Comments since there’s

approximately 15, 20 pages of Comments. And for the

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, CER
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record, they are general Comments with no specific
references to Mason County’s Plan, but general Comments
that this organization has sent to all Counties in Mason
~-- all Counties in Michigan.

And that is the end of our correspondence, Mr.
Chairman.

MR. LETSINGER: Any questions?

MR. KREINBRINK: John Kreinbrink. I’m a member of
the Solid Waste Planning Committee. The Emmet County Plan
authorized Export to all Counties but they only list a few
Counties that they authorize Import from.

MR. RNIZACKY: Okay, and again that is an item that
we can discuss as we go through the public comments at the

meeting, to either amend the Plan or submit it to the

Board of Commissioners as drafted.

MR. KREINBRINK: Okay.
MR. LETSINGER: We can do that on the 5th.

MR. KNIZACKY: I guess another comment I should make

for the record is I got a call from the Michigan

Department of Environmental Quality, Mr. Johnson. And he
said that DEQ was going to have some written comments
related to the Plan that they would not have ready until
probably October 7th.

And he wanted me to be aware of that, that it was

coming up, but they weren’t going to be able to meet our
L : | 9

C.
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September 30th deadline, and asked that we consider those
Comments before we made any decisions to approve and send
-~ approve the Plan and send it forward to the County
Board.

And so I would recommend that this Committee cancel
your October 5th meeting and recommend that we come back
and meet on the 26th, which will give us opportunity to
have a transcript of this public hearing tonight available
to review when we need to decide on the final Plan that we
would be submitting to the Board. And then we would also
have the DEQ’s written comments at that time.

So these, these items that have been brought out are
things that we, that we could, that we’ll review and
discuss at the meeting on the 26th, if the Committee
agrees to meet on the 26th.

MR. MERCHANT: Tom Merchant, Mr. Chairman, I move
that we postpone our meeting from October 5th to October
26th at 1:30.

MR. RIFFLE: Jim Riffle in support.

MR. LETSINGER: Any questions or discussions? All
those in favor of changing our meeting date to the 26th of
October at 1:30 at the County Building -

- MR. KNIZACKY: Mason County Service Building.
MR. LETSINGER: -- Ser&ice Building, let it be known

with the word "aye"?
' 16
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MULTIPLE VOICES: Aye.

MR. LETSINGER: Opposed, same sign? Then we’ll meet
on the 26th.

I hear no public comments.

MR. KNIZACKY: I think for the record we should state
that there are no members of the public.

MR. LETSINGER: Is there any other business that we
can take care of tonight or should we -- some of these
correspondence that we’d want to talk about, should that
wait until our next meeting?

MR. RNIZACKY: I‘d recommend that we wait until that
meeting, yes.

MR. LETSINGER: If there’s no other comments or

questions, I’d entertain a motion that we close the public (w

hearing.

MR. KREINBRINK: So moved.

MR. LE&SINGER: A second?

MR. MERCHANT: Merchant, second.

MR. LETSINGER; All those in favor let it be known by
the word "aye"?

MULTIPLE VOICES: Aye.

MR. LETSINGER: Opposed, same sign? Motion carries
and we are adjourned. Then do I hear a separate motion
that we move to adjourn?

MR. KIVELA: I move to adjourn.

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, CER
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MR. LETSINGER: Second? Maybe it will die for lack
of a second.

MR. HENDRICK: Second.

MR. LETSINGER: All those in favor of adjourning let
it be known by the word "aye"?

MULTIPLE VOICES: Aye.

MR. LETSINGER: Motion carries. We do need the
signatures of everybody here, I suppose.

MR. KNIZACKY: Fabian Knizacky correcting a previous
statement; we have one member of the general public

present, rather than no general members, and his name is

Don Jesuale.

(Proceedings concluded at 7:50 p.m.)

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

COUNTY OF MASON )

I certify that this transcript consisting of 12 pages is a
complete,'true, and correct transdript of the proceedings

taken at the public hearing on September 30, 1999.

October 14, 1999 Jﬁzkaféﬂéa,/;;éfjgff/Zﬂﬁ/?t/

DEBRA MORGAN, CSR 5743, RPR
Official Court Reporter
51st Judicial Circuit Court
Mason County Courthouse
Ludington, Michigan, 49431
(231) 845-0516
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LAW OFFICES

HONIGMAN MILLER SCHWARTZ AND COHN

2290 FIRST NATIONAL BUILDING
660 WOODWARD AVENUE

JEFFREY L. WOOLSTRUM

DETROIT. MICHIGAN < - LANSING. MICHIGAN
TELEPHONE: (313) 465-7612 CHIGAN 48226-3583
FAX: (313) 465-7613 FAX (313) 465-8000

" E-MAIL: jlw@honigman com

September 2, 1999

Mr. Fabrian L. Knizacky

Mason County Solid Waste Planning Committee
304 East Ludington Avenue

Ludington, MI 49431

RE: Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan Update

Dear Mr. Knizacky:

We are attorneys representing the Michigan Waste Industries Association (“MWIA”).
MWIA is a Michigan nonprofit corporation representing approximately 50 individual Michigan-
based solid waste companies, some of which operate within Mason County. MWIA submits the
enclosed document (“Comments™) for inclusion in the administrative record of public comments
on Mason County’s draft solid waste management plan update (the “Plan”). The Comments
address MWIA’s concerns with certain provisions that may be contained in the Plan that exceed
Mason County’s authority. Mason County does not have unlimited authority to include
provisions in a solid waste management plan. Rather, Mason County only has such powers that
have been granted by the Michigan Legislature. Although the Legislature authorized Mason
County to prepare a solid waste management plan under Part 115 of the Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act (“Part 115”), Mason County may only include in the Plan those
provisions that are expressly identified in Part 115 or the administrative rules promulgated by the
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”) under Part 115 (the “Part 115
Rules™). The provisions discussed in the Comments are clearly not authorized under Part 115 or

the Part 115 Rules.

To the extent the Plan contains any of the provisions discussed in the Comments, or
incorporates such provisions into the Plan by reference to other documents, MWIA requests that
Mason County either: (1) revise the Plan to eliminate the offending provisions; or (2) provide a
written response to MWIA’s concerns in the Plan’s appendix, as required by Rule 711(g) of the

" Part 115 Rules, which sets forth the basis for retaining such provisions in the Plan. Feel free to
call me with any questions regarding MWIA’s Comments.

zwm

Jeffrey oolstrum

Smcerely,

cc: Mr. Jim Sygo, Chief Waste Management Division, MDEQ

Mr. Terry Guerin, Pre51dent -- MWIA
DET_B\183799.1
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MICHIGAN WASTE INDUSTRIES ASSOCIATION
GENERAL COMMENTS ON
COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATES

Michigan Waste Industries Association (“MWIA”) submits the following general
comments on the contents of solid waste management plan updates that are currently being
prepared by various counties under the authority of Part 115 of the Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act (“Part 115”) and the administrative rules promulgated thereunder
(the “Part 115 Rules”). The discussion contained in this document is divided into two main
sections. The first section discusses a county’s limited authority to regulate matters in general,
and the Legislature’s narrow delegation of authority under Part 115 to include provisions in a
solid waste management plan. In light of this narrow delegation of authority, the second section
reviews eleven provisions that have appeared in one or more of the draft solid waste
management plan updates. These eleven provisions generally relate to:

o disposal fees;

e disposal area operating criteria;
e mandated recycling;

e mandated data collection;

e preservation of more than 10 years of disposal capacity;

e disposal area volume caps;

¢ identification of specific disposal areas that may accept county waste;
e restrictions on spucial waste importation;

 enforcement activities by uncertified health departments;

e transporter licensing; and
e the severablity of unlawful plan provisions without a formal plan amendment.

MWIA contends that these provisions exceed the limited authority that has been
delegated to the counties under Part 115. Further, because the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”) can only approve or disapprove a county solid waste
management plan without conditions, MWIA contends that MDEQ cannot approve a plan that
contains one or more of these offending provisions.

L. PERMISSIBLE CONTENTS OF COUNTY
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANS

Although Part 115 authorizes counties, among other government entities, to prepare solid
waste management plans, counties do not have carte blanch to include any provision related to
solid waste in their plans. To the contrary, counties must work within the narrow confines of the
Legislature’s delegation of authority under Part 115. Thus, when reviewing a plan submitted by
a county for final approval, MDEQ must not ask, “does Part 115 prohibit this particular
provision.” Rather, MDEQ must ask whether a specific section of Part 115 or the Part 115 Rules
clearly authorizes each provision included in a solid waste management plan including each
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provision incorporated by reference into the plan. If the answer to that question is not an
unqualified “yes,” MDEQ must deny approval of the plan.

A. COUNTIES ONLY POSSESS
DELEGATED POWERS AND CANNOT
REGULATE FOR THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY OF THEIR RESIDENTS

MWIA’s comments on the contents of solid waste management plans are rooted in the fact
that Michigan counties have delegated powers only and do not have any inherent power to
regulate for purposes of the public’s health, safety and general welfare. A “county has only such
powers as have been granted to it by the Constitution or the state Legislature.” Alan v. Wayne
Co., 388 Mich. 210, 245 (1972); Berrien Co. Probate Judges v. Michigan Am. Fed'n of State,
Co. & Mun. Employees Council 25, 217 Mich. App. 205 (1996). Where counties have been
clearly delegated such powers, the Michigan Constitution provides that the powers “shall be
liberally construed in [the counties’] favor” and that “[pJowers granted to counties ... shall
include those fairly implied and not prohibited by this constitution.” Const. 1963, art. VII, § 34.
This constitutionally 1mposed rule of interpretation, however, is not an independent grant of
authority. “As these provisions are not self-executing, the rights which they bestow and the
duties which they impose may not be enforced without the aid of legislative enactment.” County
Comm'r of Oakland Co. v. Oakland Co. Executive, 98 Mich. App. 639, 646 (1980). Thus,
counties have no inherent authority to include provisions in solid waste management plans without

clear authorization by Legislature under Part 115.

The Office of the Attorney General (“*AG”) has consistently opined that counties are without
authority to regulate matters that have not been clearly delegated by the Legislature. For example,
the AG most recently opined that a non-charter county does not have authority to regulate the
emissions from a municipal waste incinerator. OAG, 1998, No. 6,992 (Aug. 13, 1998). In that
opinion, the AG first noted that townships, cities and villages have been granted authority by the
Michigan Legislature to adopt ordinances for the purpose of protecting the public’s health, safety
and general welfare. Therefore, the AG opined that a township, city or village may adopt an air
pollution control ordinance, provided that it is reasonably related to this purpose. For counties,
however, the AG noted that, while chartered counties are expressly authorized by statute to adopt
ordinances to abate air pollution, the Legislature “has not seen fit to grant this power to
noncharter counties.” Id., slip op. p. 3 (emphasis added). The AG concluded that a “noncharter
county is thus not authorized to adopt an air pollution ordinance.” Id; see also, OAG, 1969-
1970, No. 4,696, p. 197 (Nov. 25, 1970) (county could not adopt air pollution control ordinance
because no Michigan statute authorized a non-chartered county to abate air pollution and county
ordinance would interfere with local affairs of villages and townships). This opinion is particularly
significant with respect to solid waste management plans prepared under Part 115 because a
municipal waste incinerator is a disposal area that must be-consistent with such a plan. See M.C. L

§ 324.11529(4).

Other AG opinions express a similar narrow view of a county’s authority to regulate in
the absence of clear enabling legislation. In OAG, 1989-1990, No. 6,665, p. 401
(Nov. 15, 1990), the AG opined that counties lacked the general authority to regulate the location
of cigarette vending machines because such a county ordinance would interfere with the
authority of the villages and townships to regulate such matters. In OAG, 1979-1980, No. 5,617,
p. 526 (Dec. 28, 1979), the AG opined that a county could not adopt the Michigan Vehicle Code as



an ordinance because “[t]he adoption of the motor vehicle code by a county would not be consistent
with the legislative intention [to grant certain exclusive powers to the county road commission],
would have the effect of contravening the general laws of the state, and of extending or increasing
the powers or jurisdiction of a county board of commissioners.” In OAG, 1977-1978, No. 5,341, p.
556 (July 31, 1978), the AG opined that a county had no authority to operate a spay and neuter
clinic for dogs and cats because “[nJo provision of the [Michigan Dog Law] specifically or
impliedly authorizes a county to establish and maintain a spay and neuter clinic and cats are not
mentioned in either the title or body of the act” In OAG, 1977-1978, No. 5,304, p. 427
(April 27, 1978), the AG opined that a county board of commissioners could not establish a
county police or security force because “the delegation of law enforcement responsibilities to
any entity other than the sheriff would contravene general state laws [and] would tend to increase
the powers, duties and jurisdiction of the county board of commissioners by transferring a
measure of the sheriff's authority to an organization responsible to the board and not to the
sheriff.” Finally, in OAG, 1971-1972, No. 4,741, p. 82 (April 13, 1972), the AG opined that a
county was without authority to adopt an ordinance banning the discharge of firearms in the
county because there was “no express or implied power in the county which would support the
adoption of [such] an ordinance.”

B. PART 115 ESTABLISHES THE
SPECIFIC CONTENTS OF A SOLID
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN AND
COUNTIES CANNOT INCLUDE
EXTRANEOUS PROVISIONS THAT
WOULD EXPAND THEIR LIMITED
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY.

The contents of a solid waste management plan are limited to the provisions that are
:uthorized in Part 115 and the Part 115 Rules, which are summarized below. A solid waste
management plan must “encompass all municipalities within the county” and “take into
consideration solid waste management plans in contiguous counties and existing local approved
solid waste management plans as they relate to the county's needs.” M.C.L. § 324.11533(2). A
solid waste management plan must contain an evaluation of the “best available information”
regarding recyclable materials within the planning area, including an evaluation of how the
planning entity is meeting the state's waste reduction and recycling goals, and, based on that
analysis, either provide for recycling and composting of such materials or establish that recycling
and composting are not necessary or feasible or is only necessary or feasible to a limited extent.
M.C.L. § 324.11539(1)(a), (b) and (d). If the solid waste management plan proposes a recycling
or composting program, the plan must contain details of the major features of that program,
including ordinances or other measures that will ensure collection of the material; however, as
discussed below, Part 115 does not operate as enabling legislation for such ordinances. M.C.L.
§ 324.11539(1)(c). A solid waste management plan must “identify specific sites for solid waste
disposal areas for a S-year period after approval of a plan or plan update,” and either identify
specific sites for disposal areas for the remaining portion of the ten-year planning period, or
include a process to annually certify the remaining solid waste disposal capacity available to the
plan area and an interim siting mechanism’ that becomes operative when the annual certification

. '"An interim siting mechanism shall include both a process and a set of minimum siting
criteria, both of which are not subject to interpretation or discretionary acts by the planning entity,



indicates that the available capacity is less than 66 months. M.C.L. § 324.11538(2). The solid
waste management plan must “explicitly authorize” another county, state, or country to export
solid waste into the county. M.C.L. § 324.11538(6).? In addition, “[w]ith regard to intercounty
service within Michigan, the service must also be explicitly authorized in the exporting county's

solid waste management plan.” Id.

In addition to the plan content requirements expressly contained in Part 115, Section
11538(1) authorizes MDEQ to promulgate rules “for the development, form, and submission of
initial solid waste management plans.” M.C.L. § 324.11538(1). Part 115 directs MDEQ to
provide for the following in its administrative rules regarding solid waste management plans:

(a) The establishment of goals and objectives for prevention of
adverse effects on the public health and on the environment resulting
from improper solid waste collection, processing, or disposal
including protection of surface and groundwater quality, air quality,
and the land.

(b) An evaluation of waste problems by type and volume, including
residential and commercial solid waste, hazardous waste, industrial
sludges, pretreatment residues, municipal sewage sludge, air
pollution control residue, and other wastes from industrial or

municipal sources.

(c) An evaluation and selection of technically and economically
feasible solid waste management options, which may include
sanitary landfill, resource recovery systems, resource conservation,
or a combination of options.

(d) An inventory and description of all existing facilities where solid
waste is being treated, processed, or disposed of, including a
summary of the deficiencies, if any, of the facilities in meeting
current solid waste management needs.

(e) The encouragement and documentation as part of the plan, of all
opportunities for participation and involvement of the public, all
affected agencies and parties, and the private sector.

and which if met by an applicant submitting a disposal area proposal, will guarantee a finding of
consistency with the plan." M.C.L. § 324.11538(3).

%See also, M.C.L. § 324.11513; Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(e)(iii)(C). In Fort Gratiot
Sanitary Landfill, Inc. v. Department of Natural Resources, 504 U.S. 353 (1992), the United States
Supreme Court invalidated Part 115's flow control provisions to the extent they regulated the

interstate flow of solid waste because such regulation violated the Commerce Clause of the United
States Constitution.




(D) That the plan contain enforceable mechanisms for implementing
the plan, including identification of the municipalities within the
county responsible for the enforcement. This subdivision does not
preclude the private sector's participation in providing solid waste
management services consistent with the county plan.

(g) Current and projected population densities of each county and
identification of population centers and centers of solid waste
generation, including industrial wastes.

(h) That the plan area has, and will have during the plan period,
access to a sufficient amount of available and suitable land,
accessible to transportation media, to accommodate the development
and operation of solid waste disposal areas, or resource recovery
facilities provided for in the plan.

(i) That the solid waste disposal areas or resource recovery facilities
provided for in the plan are capable of being developed and operated
in compliance with state law and rules of the department pertaining
to protection of the public health and the environment, considering
the available land in the plan area, and the technical feasibility of,
and economic costs associated with, the facilities.

() A timetable or schedule for 1mp1ementmg the county solid waste
management plan. .

M.C.L. § 324.11538(1)(a)-(j). MDEQ has promulgated such rules in Part 7 of the Part 115
Rules. Mich. Admin. Code 1. 299.4701 et seq.

Rule 711 of the Part 115 Rules sets forth the general structure and the required contents
of a county solid waste management plan. “To comply with the requirements of [Part 115,] ..
county solid waste management plans shall be in compllance with the following general format”
(i) executive summary;’ (ii) introduction;* (iii) data base;’ (iv) solid waste management system

3The executive summary must include an overview of the plan, the conclusions reached in
the plan and the selected solid waste disposal alternatives. Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(a).

*The introduction must establish the plan's goals and objectives for protecting the public
health and the environment by properly collecting, transporting, processing, or disposing of solid
waste, and by reducing the volume of the solid waste stream through resource recovery, including
source reduction and source separation. Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(b).

The data base must include: (1) an inventory and description of the existing facilities
serving the county's solid waste disposal needs; (ii) an evaluation of existing problems related to
solid waste collection, management, processing, treatment, transportation, and disposal, by type and
~ volume of solid waste; (iii) the current and projected population densities, centers of population, and

centers of waste generation for five- and twenty-year periods; and (iv) the current and projected land



alternatives; (v) plan selection; (vi) management component; and (vii) documentation of public
participation in the preparation of the plan.® Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.471 1(a)-(d). Under this
general format, the operative portions of a solid waste management plan are contained in the
solid waste management system alternatives, plan selection, and management component
elements of the plan. The required contents of these three elements are discussed below.

First, each solid waste management system alternative developed in the plan must
address the existing problems identified in the plan's data base related to solid waste collection,
management, processing, treatment, transportation, and disposal and must address the following
components: (i) resource conservation and recovery, including source reduction, source
separation, energy savings, and markets for reusable materials; (ii) solid waste volume reduction;
(iii) solid waste collection and transportation; (iv) sanitary landfills; (v) ultimate uses for disposal
areas following final closure; and (vi) institutional arrangements, such as agreements or other
organizational arrangements or structures, that will provide for the necessary solid waste
collection, transportation, processing and disposal systems. Mich. Admin. Code r.
299.4711(d)(()(A)-(H). In addition, the plan must evaluate public health, economic,’
environmental, siting, and energy impacts associated with each alternative. Mich. Admin. Code

r. 299.4711(d)(ii).

Second, the plan must select the preferred solid waste management system alternative
developed and evaluated in the plan. The selection must be based on “[a]n evaluation and
ranking of proposed alternative systems” using factors that include: (i) technical and economic
feasibility; (ii) access to necessary land and transportation networks; (iii) effects on energy
usage, including the impacts of energy shortages; (iv) environmental impacts; and (v) public
acceptability. Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(e)(i)(A)-(G). The basis for the selection must be
set forth in the plan, including a summary of the evaluation and ranking system. Mich. Admin.
Coder. 299.4711(e)(i1)(A). The plan must state the advantages and disadvantages of the selected
alternative based on the following factors: (i) public health; (ii) economics; (iii) environmental
effects; (iv) energy use; and (v) disposal area siting problems. Mich. Admin. Code r.
299.4711(e)(i))(B)(1)-(5). The selected alternative must “be capable of being developed and
operated in compliance with state laws and rules of the Department pertaining to the protection
of the public health and environment,” include a timetable for implementing the plan, and be
“consistent with and utilize population, waste generation, and other [available] planning
information.” Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(e)(ii)(C)~(E). With respect to disposal areas, the
selected alternative must “identify specific sites for solid waste disposal areas” for a five-year

development patterns and environmental conditions as related to solid waste management systems
for five and twenty-year periods. Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(c)(i)-(iv).

$The public participation in the preparation of the solid waste management plan must be
documented by including in an appendix to the plan a record of attendance at the public hearing and
the planning agency's responses to citizens' concerns and questions. Mich. Admin. Code r.

299.4711(g).

"The evaluation of the economic impacts must include an estimate of the capital,
operational, and maintenance costs for each alternative system. Mich. Admin. Code r.
299.4711(d)(ii).
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period following MDEQ approval of the plan and, “[i]f specific sites cannot be identified for the
remainder of the 20-year period, the selected alternative shall include specific criteria that
guarantee the siting of necessary solid waste disposal areas for the 20-year period subsequent to
plan approval.” Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(e)(iii)(A), (B). As of June 9, 1994, however, “a
county that has a solid waste management plan that provides for siting of disposal areas to fulfill
a 20-year capacity need through use of a siting mechanism, is only required to use its siting
mechanisms to site capacity to meet a 10-year capacity need.” M.C.L. § 324.11537a.

Third, the “management component” element of a solid waste management plan must
“identif[y] management responsibilities and institutional arrangements necessary for the
implementation of technical alternatives.” Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4711(f). The management
component must contain the following: (i) “[a]n identification of the existing structure of
persons, municipalities, counties, and state and federal agencies responsible for solid waste
management, including planning, implementation, and enforcement”; (ii) an assessment of such
persons' and governmental entities’ technical, administrative, financial and legal capabilities to
fulfill their responsibilities under the plan; (iii) “[a]n identification of gaps and problem areas in
the existing management system which must be addressed to permit implementation of the plan”;
and (iv) a “recommended management system for plan implementation.”® Mich. Admin. Code r.
299.4711(H)(1)-(iii). '

Solid waste management plans that contain provisions that have not been clearly
authorized under the specific sections of Part 115 and the Part 115 Rules discussed above are
unlawful. A plan containing such unlawful provisions cannot be approved by MDEQ.

II. MWIA'S COMMENTS ON COUNTY PLAN
PROVISIONS

With the foregoing limitations on the specific contents of a solid waste management plan in
mind, MWIA contends that the following provisions that are either contained expressly in a solid
waste management plan, or that are contained elsewhere (e.g. ordinances, regulations or resolutions)
but .re incorporated by reference into a solid waste management plan, clearly exceed a county’s

authority under Part 115:

8The recommended management system must: (i) identify specific persons and
governmental entities that are responsible for implementing and enforcing the plan, including the
legal, technical, and financial capability of such persons and entities to fulfill their responsibilities;
(i) contain a process for "ensuring the ongoing involvement of and consultation with the regional
solid waste management planning agency," and for "ensuring coordination with other related plans
and programs within the planning area, including, but not limited to, land use plans, water quality
plars, and air quality plans”; (iii) identify "necessary training and educational programs, including
public education"; (iv) contain a "strategy for plan implementation, including the acceptance of
responsibilities from all entities assigned a role within the management system"; and (v) identify
"funding sources for entities assigned responsibilities under the plan." Mich. Admin. Code r.

299.4711(£)(iii)(A)-(F).
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DISPOSAL FEES

Nothing in the Part 115 or Part 115 Rule provisions discussed above authorizes a county
to require the payment or collection of fees as part of a solid waste management plan. At most,
Rule 711(f)(iii)(F) authorizes the “management component” of a plan to “recommend’ a
“financial program that identifies funding sources.” Mich.- Admin. Code r. 299.4711(f)(iii)(F).
The underlying authority for such a funding program, however, cannot arise from the plan itself
and must be found in some other enabling legislation.

Although the Michigan Court of Appeals has recently held that that Section 11520(1) of
Part 115 authorized Saginaw County to adopt an ordinance that imposes a surcharge on the
disposal of solid waste within the county, the court did not hold that such an ordinance may be
included in a solid waste management plan or that a solid waste management plan may operate
as the underlying authority for such a fee. County of Saginaw v. Peoples Garbage Disposal,
Inc., 232 Mich. App. 202 (1998). Indeed, the ordinance at issue in County of Saginaw was
merely mentioned in the plan as a possible source of revenue and was adopted after MDEQ had
approved the Saginaw County Solid Waste Management Plan. This distinction is significant
because a disposal area that operates “contrary” to an approved solid waste management plan
may be subject to an enforcement action under Part 115, which may include a cease and desist
order. M.C.L. § 324,11519(2). Clearly, nothing in Part 115 indicates that a disposal area could
be ordered to cease operations merely because it failed to pay a fee imposed by a local ordinance.

Moreover, the holding in County of Saginaw is inapplicable to counties that do not have
certified health departments under Part 115. Section 11520(1) of Part 115, which the court relied

upon for its holding, provides:

Fees collected by a health officer under this part shall be deposited
with the city or county treasurer, who shall keep the deposits in a
special fund designated for use in implementing this part. If there
is an ordinance or charter provision that prohibits a health officer
from maintaining a special fund, the fees shall be deposited and
used in accordance with the ordinance or charter provision. Fees
collected by the department under this part shall be credited to the
general fund of the state.

M.C.L. § 324.11520(1) (emphasis added). A heaith officer is expressly defined as in Part 115 as
“a full-time administrative officer of a certified city, county or district department of health.”
M.C.L. § 324.11504(1) (emphasis added). A certified department of health must be “specifically
delegated authority by [MDEQ] to perform designated activities prescribed by [Part 115].”
M.C.L. § 324.11502(5). Part 2 (Certification of Local Health Departments) of the Part 115 Rules
sets forth the specific requirements that a county health department must meet in order to
become certified. Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4201 et seq. Part 115 contains absolutely no
authority for the collection of fees by a county that does not have a certified health department.

Further, even if Part 115 did authorize the inclusion of a fee provision in the solid waste
management plan of a county with a certified health department (which it does not), MDEQ is
prohibited from approving such a plan if the fee is really a disguised tax that violates the Headlee
Amendment to the Michigan Constitution, which prohibits local units of government from
imposing new taxes without voter approval. Mich. Const. art. 9, § 31; See Bolt v. City of
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Lansing, 459 Mich. 152 (1998) (storm water fee invalidated under Headlee Amendment as
disguised tax). MDEQ's act of approving a solid waste management plan is not merely a rubber
stamp of a county’s independent act. Rather, MDEQ’s approval is the final step in establishing a
statewide “cohesive scheme of uniform controls” over the disposal of solid waste. Southeastern
Oakland Co. Incinerator Auth. v. Avon Twp., 144 Mich. 39, 44 (1986). By approving a solid
waste management plan, MDEQ incorporates that plan into the State solid waste management
plan, M.C.L. § 324.11544(1), and, thereafter, a person may not “establish a disposal area” or

“conduct, manage, maintain, or operate” a disposal area “contrary” to that approved plan.
M.C.L. §§ 324.11509(1), .11512(2). Accordingly, MDEQ could not approve a solid waste
management plan that imposes a fee on the disposal of solid waste wunless MDEQ can
demonstrate that the amount of any fee imposed will be reasonable related to the services
provided to the persons paying the fee, and that the fee will not otherwise constitute a tax that

requires voter approval.

MWIA also believes that, because the decision in County of Saginaw has been appealed
to the Michigan Supreme Court, MDEQ should use its discretion and refrain from approving
county solid waste management plans that contain fee provisions until this issue has been fully
resolved. In this regard, MWIA notes that the appeals court’s analysis of Section 11520(1) is
clearly erroneous because it failed to consider the history and development of Part 115. Section
11520(1) was originally enacted as Section 18 of 1978 PA 641. M.C.L. § 299.418 (repealed,
now Section 11520(1) of Part 115). In 1978, the only fees expressly contemplated in Act 641
were nominal disposal area operating license and construction permit application fees, which
ranged between $100 and $700. Further, the language of Section 18 of Act 641 was nearly
identical to Section 3(3) of the Garbage and Rubbish Disposal Act of 1965, which imposed
" similar nominal application fees and imposed very few obligations on counties with respect to

.- ‘the solid waste disposal. M.C.L. § 325.293(3) (repealed by Act 641). The Legislature’s intent
with respect to Section 11520(1) was to allow certified county health departments to retain and
use these application fees solely for the purpose of processing the applications. The Legislature
clearly did not intend for Section 11520(1) to operate as enabling legislation for counties to
impose fees on the disposal of solid waste in order to fund an extensive county solid waste or
recycling program.’ Accordingly, the appeals court’s interpretation of Part 115 will likely be

overturned.

OPERATING CRITERIA

A solid waste management plan may not contain disposal area operating criteria.
Nothing in Part 115 or the Part 115 Rule provisions discussed above authorizes a solid waste
management plan to regulate the day-to-day operations of a disposal area. To the contrary, Part
115 provides MDEQ with exclusive authority to regulate disposal area operation. Further,
Michigan Appellate Court decisions have unanimously interpreted Part 115 as preempting all
local regulation of disposal area operation. County of Saginaw v. Peoples Garbage Disposal,
Inc., 232 Mich. App. 202 (1998); Southeastern Oakland County Incineration Authority v. Avon
Township, 144 Mich. App. 39 (1985); Weber v. Orion Twp. Bldg. Inspector, 149 Mich. App. 660

% It is also noteworthy that, for the last three years, bills that would authorize county-
imposed fees have been proposed in the Michigan Legislature.




(1986) ("all local regulations concerning the operation of a landfill are preempted"); Dafter
Township v. Reid, 159 Mich. App. 149 (1987). Thus, disposal area operating criteria are not
appropriate for a solid waste management plan.

MANDATED RECYCLING

A solid waste management plan may not mandate a quota on the volume of solid waste
that is recycled within the planning area. Nothing in Part 115 or the Part 115 Rule provisions
discussed above authorizes a county or any another planning agency to mandate such a quota
system. Rather, Part 115 only authorizes a county to “propose a recycling or composting
program” in a county plan. M.C.L. § 324.11539(1)(b). Such a program may only set recycling
goals, rather than require absolute volume reductions. M.C.L. § 324.11539(1)(d). Further, a
program that prohibits a disposal area from accepting a particular type of solid waste, such as waste
that could be recycled, would directly conflict with Section 11516(5) of Part 115, which states that

- “[iJssuance of an operating license by [MDEQ] authorizes the licensee to accept waste for
disposal.” M.C.L. §§ 324.11533(1), .11516(5) (emphasis added). Thus, any recycling program

may, at most, be referenced as a goal.

MANDATED DATA COLLECTION

A solid waste management plan may not require the owner or operator of a disposal area
to collect and report data concerning the volume of solid waste that is recycled or disposed of.
Nothing in Part 115 or the Part 115 Rule provisions discussed above authorizes a county to
impose such an on-going duty on disposal area owners and operators. Rather, Part 115 only
requires that, at the time a plan-is prepared, a county evaluate “how the planning entity is
meeting the state’s waste reduction goals.” M.C.L. § 324.11539(1)(d)."° Further, Part 115
expressly delegates the authority to impose such data-collection duties solely to MDEQ and not
to the counties. M.C.L. § 324.11507a. Thus, data collection requirements imposed in a solid
waste management plan exceed the authority delegated under Part 115.

PRESERVATION OF MORE THAN 10 YEARS OF CAPACITY

A solid waste management plan should provide for the free flow of solid waste to the
extent the plan otherwise demonstrates 10 years of disposal capacity. A county has no duty or
obligation under Part 115 to demonstrate more than 10 years of disposal capacity. M.C.L. §
324.11538(2). Therefore, a county has no legitimate interest in preserving additional disposal
capacity by restricting or prohibiting the importation of out-of-county waste. -~ While the .
preservation of disposal capacity beyond the legitimate needs of a county may ultimately benefit
county residents, the cost of providing that benefit is imposed solely on the disposal area owners
and operators doing business within the county. Such a restriction on the use of a disposal area’s
air space constitutes a taking without compensation that violates the federal and Michigan

constitutions.

1 A bill that would authorize such mandated data collection regarding recycled material
was proposed in the Michigan Legislature last year. .
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VOLUME RESTRICTIONS

A solid waste management plan cannot restrict the volume of solid waste that may be
accepted for disposal at a disposal area during any given time period. Such a restriction is not
authorized by that Part 115 Part 115 Rule provisions discussed above and directly conflicts with
Section 11516(5) of Part 115, which states that "[i]ssuance of an operating license by [MDEQ]
authorizes the licensee to accept waste for disposal,” without limitation. M.C.L. §§ 324.11533(1),
.11516(5) (emphasis added). Such a volume cap would also constitute local regulation of
disposal area operating criteria, which, as discussed above, is preempted by Part 115.
Southeastern Oakland County Incineration Authority v. Avon Township, 144 Mich. App. 39
(1985); Weber v. Orion Twp. Bldg. Inspector, 149 Mich. App. 660 (1986) ("all local regulations
concerning the operation of a landfill are preempted"); Dafter Township v. Reid, 159 Mich. App.
149 (1987). Moreover, such a restriction is an unconstitutional taking of property because it
temporarily prevents the use of air space at the disposal area without compensating the owner or

operator.

IDENTIFICATION OF SPECIFIC DISPOSAL AREAS

While a solid waste management plan may identify specific disposal areas that are
available and willing to accept a county’s waste in order to demonstrate that a county has 10
years of disposal capacity and that the plan does not require an interim siting mechanism under
Section 11538(2) of Part 115, nothing in Part 115 authorizes a county to restrict the disposal of
its solid waste to those specifically identified facilities. Rather, Sections 11513 and 11538(6) of
Part 115 require that a plan authorize the “acceptance” of out-of-county waste and the disposal

-“service” provided either by or for another Michigan county; however, these sections do not
require that such acceptance or service be limited to specifically identified disposal areas.
M.C.L. §§ 324.11513, .11538(6). At most, a solid waste management plan may limit the
disposal of a county’s solid waste to specific counties that are explicitly authorized in the plan to
accept the waste and to serve the county’s disposal needs. Furthermore, to the extent that Rule
711(e)(iii)(C) of the Part 115 Rules can be interpreted as requiring the identification of specific
disposal areas in solid waste management plans, MWIA contends that such a requirement

exceeds MDEQ’s authority under Part 115 and is unenforceable.

RESTRICTIONS ON SPECIAL WASTE

A solid waste management plan may not restrict the importation of specific types of solid
waste. With the possible exception of municipal solid waste incinerator ash, nothing in Part 115
authorizes a solid waste management plan to distinguish between different types of solid waste.
See M.C.L. §§324.11513, 11538(6). Therefore, to the extent a solid waste management plan
authorizes solid waste to be imported from or exported to other counties, such authorization must
extend to all forms of solid waste, as that term is defined in Part 115.
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ENFORCEMENT BY UNCERTIFIED HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Part 115 and the Part 115 Rules only grant enforcement powers to county health
departments that have been certified by MDEQ. For example, Part 115 expressly provides that a
health officer of a certified health department may inspect a licensed disposal area at any
reasonable time and may issue a cease and desist order, establish a schedule of closure or
remedial action, or enter into a consent agreement with an owner or operator of a disposal area
that violates the provisions of Part 115 or the Part 115 Rules. M.C.L. § 324.11516(3); Mich.
Admin. Code r.299.4203. In addition, a health officer of a certified health department may
inspect a solid waste transporting unit that is being used to transport solid waste along a public
road or is being used for the overnight storage of solid waste and may order the unit out of
service if it does not comply with the requirements of Part 115 or the Part 115 Rules. M.C.L. §§
324.11525, .11528(3); Mich. Admin. Code r. 299.4205. None of these enforcement and
inspection powers, however, has been delegated to a county that does not have a certified health
department. Therefore, to the extent a county does not have a certified health department, any
enforcement and inspection provisions contained in a solid waste management plan are unlawful.

It should also be noted that several counties without certified health departments are
attempting incorporating ordinances into their solid waste management plans under the guise of
“enforceable mechanisms,” which regulate matters that have been delegated solely to a counties
that have certified health departments. For example, at least one such ordinance includes a
provision that would authorize a county without a certified health department to issue a “stop
order” that prohibits the operation of a disposal area in violation of any provision of the
ordinance. As discussed above, this authority has been delegated solely to counties with certified
health departments. M.C.L. § 324.11516(3). Further, such a “stop order” would operate as a
suspension of a license issued under Part 115 without any of the procedural protections provided
under the Michigan Administrative Procedures Act. M.C.L. § 24.101 et seq.

It should also be noted that, although a solid waste management plan must include a
“program and process” to assure that solid waste is properly collected and disposed of, Part 115’s
planning provisions are not enabling legislation for county ordinances. M.C.L. § 324.11533(1).
The “program and process” included in a solid waste management plan is only “enforceable” to
the extent the plan incorporates “enforceable mechanisms” that are specifically authorized under
enabling statutes other than Part 115. M.C.L. § 324.11538(1)(D). Although the Legislature
contemplated that “enforceable mechanisms” may include ordinances,'! Part 115 expressly states
that it does not “validate or invalidate an ordinance adopted by a county” for purposes of assuring
solid waste collection and disposal. M.C.L. § 324.11531(2). Thus, it is clear that the Legislature
intended that Part 115 would not operate as enabling legislation for the adoption of such enforceable
mechanisms. Such authority, if any, must be specifically delegated to counties in some other
enabling legislation. Accordingly, to the extent a solid waste management plan incorporates a
county ordinance that provides enforcement powers to a county, MDEQ may not approve such a

part 115 defines the term “enforceable mechanism” as “a legal method whereby the
state, a county, a municipality, or a person is authorized to take legal action to guarantee
compliance with an approved county solid waste management plan. Enforceable mechanisms
include contracts, intergovernmental agreements, laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.

M.C.L. § 324.11503(5).

155




plan until MDEQ has reviewed each provision of that ordinance and determined that it has been
authorized by some enabling legislation and does not exceed a county’s delegated authority

" under that legislation.

TRANSPORTER LICENSING

A solid waste management plan may not impose a licensing requirement on solid waste
transporting units. Nothing in the Part 115 or Part 115 Rule provisions discussed above
authorizes a county to implement such a licensing program. Rather, Part 115 imposes certain
minimum requirements on solid waste transporting units. See M.C.L. § 324.11528(1); Mich.
Admin. Code r. 299.4601(1). While MDEQ), a health officer of a certified health department, or
a law enforcement officer may order a solid waste transporting unit out of service if it does not
comply with these minimum requirements, Part 115 is expressly “intended to encourage the
continuation of the private sector in the solid waste . . . transportation business when in
compliance with the minimum requirements of this part.” M.C.L. §§ 324.11528(3), .11548(2)
(emphasis added). Moreover, as discussed in the previous section, Part 115°s planning
provisions do not operate as enabling legislation for counties to adopt ordinances regulating the
transportation of solid waste. It should be noted that the Legislature repealed Part 115’s
licensing requirement for solid waste transporting units in 1979. See 1979 Public Act 10.
Therefore, licensing requirements applicable to solid waste transporting units exceed a county’s
authority and a solid waste management plan containing such requirements (or incorporating an
ordinance containing such requirements) may not be approved by MDEQ.

SERVERABILITY CLAUSE

The provisions of a solid waste management plan are not severable. Part 115 does not
authorize such piecemeal revisions to a solid waste management plan without following the
specific plan amendment procedures set forth in Part 115 and the Part 115 Rules. Michigan
Waste Systems, Inc. v. Department of Natural Resources, 157 Mich. App. 746 (1987). Rather, an
amendment to a solid waste management plan to remove an unlawful provision must proceed
through a specific five-step approval process. M.C.L. § 324.11535; Mich. Admin. Code
1. 299.4708, .4709. To the extent any portion of a plan is declared unlawful or invalid and the
county does not properly amend its plan to remove the offending provision, MDEQ must
withdraw its approval of the entire plan and establish a schedule for the county to amend the plan
in order to comply with Part 115. M.C.L. § 324.11537(2). Therefore, counties and MDEQ
should make every effort at this time to ensure that each plan fully complies with Part 115.

DET_B\172131.1
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Mason County
Board of Commissioners

Court House

304 E. Ludington Ave., Ludington, Michigan 49431
(231) 843-7999 » Fax (231) 843-1972

October 28, 1999

Mr. Jeffrey L. Woolstrum

Honigman Miller Schwartz and Cohn
2290 First National Building

660 Woodward Avenue

Detroit, MI 48226-3583

Dear Mr. Woolstrum:

Thank you for your September 2 letter concerning the update of the Mason
County Solid Waste Management Plan. We appreciate the time that was
taken in reviewing our plan. Your letter does not make any reference to
any particular section of our plan that you would like to see changed.
Instead it refers to comments about solid waste management plans in

general.

We would invite you to provide us with written comments that identify
particular sections of the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan
that you would like to see addressed. That would allow us to give you a
respond to sections that you find objectable.

Thank you again for your assistance and input. Please feel free to contact
me, if you have any questions concerning this letter.

Sincerely,

Pl 2 g 2

Fabian L. Knizacky
Mason County Administrator

Cc:  Solid Waste Management Planning Committee
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Pere Marquette Charter Township

099 South Pere Marquette Hwy. Ludington, Michigan 49431
(616) 845-1277  Fax (616) 843-3330

PC99-042

September 24, 1999

Fabian L. Knizacky

Mason County Administrator

Mason County Board of Commissioners
Court House

304 E. Ludington Ave.

Ludington, MI 49431

Dear Mr. Knizacky

This letter is to advise you that the Pere Marquette Charter Township Planning Commission has
reviewed the draft update to the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan and finds that it
incorporates each of those section's of this Township's Zoning Ordinance requested in our letter of
June 3, 1999 Since these sections address each of the Commission's concerns : 2garding the siting
" and operation of solid waste facilities in the Township, the Commission considers the draft update

{ submitted to Joanne Kelley for review on July 2, 1999 acceptable as written.

The Township appreciates the opportunity to review and comment on the draft update. If you have
any questions regarding the Township's views or comments on the update, please feei free to call on
James Nordlund, Jr who oversaw the Commission's review. He can be reached at 843-3485.

Sincerely,
PERE MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP

PLANNING COMMISSION

hn Messer
ecretary

cc: J. Kelley
J. Nordlund, Jr.
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Mason County
Board of Commissioners

Court House
304 E. Ludington Ave., Ludington, Michigan 49431
(231) 843-7999 » Fax (231) 843-1972

Thomas M. Posma
Chairman

Ronald E. Sanders
Vice Chairman

Ivan J. Anthony
County Clerk

Fabian L. Knizacky

October 28, 1999

Mr. John Messer, Secretary
Pere Marquette Charter Township
Planning Commission

Administrat .
mistrator 1699 South Pere Marquette Highway
Harold Madden Ludington, MI 49431
District 1
Michael G. Schneider Dear Mr. Messer:
District 2
John E. Henderson Thank you for your September 24 letter concerning the update of the
District 3 Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan. We appreciate the time
J?mgsislt;i S’Zkem” that was taken in reviewing our plan. Your participation in the process has
( 16 Rybicki enabled us to develop a better plan for the management of solid waste. in
~-- District 5 Mason County.
Thomas M. Posma . . L.
District 6 We have also received written comments from the Michigan Department of
Charles Eberbach Environmental Quality (DEQ). It was noted by DEQ that we only
District 7 referenced the local ordinances instead of including them in their entirety.
Ronald E. Sanders . . . o1 eqs . ..
District 8 In a meeting with DEQ, we discussed the possibility of their reviewing the
Robert A. Genson local ordinances to determine if they meet the DEQ’s criteria for inclusion
District 9 in an approvable plan. If the DEQ determines that any of the ordinances

do not satisfy their criteria, than the County will either have to remove
those ordinances from the plan or the DEQ will not approve the plan. The
DEQ would then write a plan for Mason County. The Committee remains
committed to including any of the local ordinances that will not

compromise the approval of their plan.

Thank you again for your assistance and input. Please feel free to contact
me, at (231) 843-7999, if you have any questions concerning this letter.

Sincerely; )

Fabian L. Knizacky

Mason County Administrator
Cc:  Commissioner Sanders

Larry Kivela
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

JOHN ENGLER, Governor REPLY TO:

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY WASTE uatacement omsion

“Better Service for a Better Environment” LANSING Mi 48909-7741
HOLLISTER BUILDING, PO BOX 30473, LANSING M 48909-7973

INTERNET: www.deq.state.mi.us
RUSSELL J. HARDING, Director..

October 7, 1999

Mr. Fabian Knizacky, Mason County Administrator
Mason County Administrators Office

304 East Ludington Avenue

Ludington, Michigan 49431

Dear Mr. Knizacky:
SUBJECT: Draft Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan Update

On July 6, 1999, the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) received a copy of the draft

Mason County (County) Solid Waste Management Plan Update (Plan). Our review of the Plan
has now been completed. | will address our comments in the same order as the topics appear
in the Plan. In my opinion, this Plan is not approvable as written. The following areas of the -
County’s Plan may be of cause for concern and may require revision or additional information:

Table of ~

Contents Please use only one page numbering system for the entire Plan. The use of both
numbering systems listed here can be confusing.

Page 1 Please be sure to indicate the date when the final Plan is submitted to the DEQ
for approval. If different versions of the Plan are prepared during the update
process, listing the date can ensure that discussions between the DEQ and the
County are referring to the correct document.

Page 2 What information is presented in the right column? There is no heading for that
column. ' '

Page 17 The location information on this facility has not been provided. Is a map provided
for this facility? This comment applies to Page 41 also.

Page 26 The narrative states that the manner of evaluation and ranking of alternatives is
described (as required by R 299.4711(e)(i)), but no such description occurs in
this section.

Page 27 Does alternative number three propose both a multi-county incinerator and a
landfill owned by Mason County?

Page 30 Was alternative number one chosen to be the selected system? It is not

specified here.

1le0
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Mr. Fabian Knizacky 2 October 7, 1999

Page 32

Page 36

Page 48

Page 53

Page 64

Page 65

Although the Plan Format uses the terms "primary” and "contingency” as
examples of authorized conditions, neither Part 115, Solid Waste Management
(Part 115), of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act,

1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA) or the promulgated rules, define these
terms. If the County intends to use these terms, definitions of the terms should
be included in the Plan.

The narrative at the top of the page refers to facility descriptions on Pages 11I-7-1
through 11i-7-5 but these are actually on Pages 37 through 45. (Also

_numbered |11-7 through Iil-11(d)).

Most of the programs that were included on this page are not volume reduction
techniques. Volume reduction involves the use of a process to reduce the
physical size of the waste, such as, incineration. Other methods, such as
compaction, baling, or shredding could also be used to reduce the waste volume.
It is that type of process that should be listed on this page. If any parties such as
haulers, industries, or transfer facilities use volume reduction techniques, that
information should be listed here.

The narrative states that tables on Pages lI-18, 19, 20, and on Pages IlI-21, 22,
and 23 show data on recycling, composting, and source separation of hazardous
materials, but that may not be the case if the numerical page numbering system
is used for the Plan. If the pages of the Plan are numbered numerically, the
reference should be to Pages 53 through 58.

The Plan has no authority over Type | hazardous waste landfills. This statement
should be deleted.

item A.1. The planning period is 10 years, not 20, although the County may plan
for 20 years if it desires. This also applies to Item A.5. This paragraph also
refers to the Solid Waste Management Act, Act 641. References to Act 641
should be changed to Part 115 as Act 641 was repealed and recodified into the

NREPA.

Part 115 allows the County to not use the siting mechanism as long as

66 months of capacity remains, however, if the Plan sets this threshold at twenty
years, the siting process will be operable if capacity fails below that threshold
instead of the 66 months threshold in Part 115.

The reference to Act 641 in the third paragraph needs to be changed to Part 115.

In item number two under the Primary Landfill Siting Criteria heading, references
should be to a 100-year floodplain as defined by Rule 323.311 of the
administrative rules of Part 31, Water Resources Protection, of Act 451and
wetlands regulated by Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of Act 451.

Despite the fact that it was used in the example siting language in the Standard
Plan Format, we have found that the term “sensitive environmental area” is not
defined in Section 32301 of the NREPA The language in that section defines

_ only the term “environmental area.” We suggest that the Plan refer to an

“environmental area as defined in Part 323...
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Mr. Fabian Knizacky 3 October 7, 1999

Page 66

Page 67

Page 68

Page 71

Page 72

Page 73

References to a wellhead protection area should specify an area approved for
the DEQ, not as defined by the Environmental Protection Agency. [f available, a
map of groundwater recharge areas should be included in the Plan.

item three should refer to Part 361, Farmiand and Open Space Preservation, of
Act 451.

Item five refers to 20-year capacity, which the County may but is not required to
do, as discussed above.

In item six, the Plan cannot require that the developer sign an agreement for the
listed operational requirements as the County could stop a development
arbitrarily by refusing to sign an agreement. However, the Plan can require a
signed statement from the developer regarding compliance with the operational
requirements.

What is “sufficient capacity and suitable conditions” and who will decide? These
terms should be deleted.

A minimum site size of 320 acres seems prohibitively large. How did the County
derive this number and what is the justification for that large of a size
requirement? This might be better deait with in the secondary criteria.

Item nine could be interpreted as approval of all local ordinances and their
applicability to solid waste disposal areas, including requiring special use
permits. 1t is exactly this type of local control that the law intended not to allow.
The last sentence is approvable. Except for the last sentence, the language in
this item must be-deleted.

We are unable to evaluate the effect of the requirements in item ten on the siting
of landfills. The areas within the County for waste disposal uses that are
specifically included in currently adopted master land use plans should be
indicated on a map included as a part of the Plan.

The references to Act 641 in items one and two of the secondary siting criteria
need to be changed to Part 115. What will be the score of a site that meets
some but not all of the conditions for a natural site? Zero?

The references to Act 641 need to be changed to Part 115.

The point threshold for the secondary siting criteria seems prohibitively high to
allow facilities to be sited. The only way for an applicant to meet it is to engage
in activities that may exceed the scope of the disposal business, greatly exceed
the required isolation distances, or to pay surcharges.

The reference to Act 641 in item two under the Site Review Process heading
needs to be changed to Part 115.

In item a, inclusion of the DEQ's advisory analysis cannot be a requirement as
the DEQ is not required to prepare an advisory analysis and may not do so for all
proposed sites. In item g. the application fee of $25,000.00 seems unreasonably
high. The fees also appear to be open-ended and discretionary. This fee
statement could allow the Board to assess any unreasonable fee and, thereby,
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Mr. Fabian Knizacky 4 October 7, 1999

Page 74

Page 75

Page 76

Pages 77
and 78

Page 79

prohibit the siting of a new facility. A reasonable fee should either be established
in the Plan or by the Board of Commissioners before any applications are
received. The Plan should inciude a statement that any portion of the fee not
used by the County in the site review process will be returned to the applicant.

What is the purpose of items m through 0? There is no specific criteria for these
items. If these submittals are for informational purposes only, the Plan shouid
state so.

The role of the TRC seems vague. The paragraph at the bottom of the page

“says the TRC will use “site evaluation methods described elsewhere in this

section.” In my review of the Plan, | could find no specific methods to be used by
the TRC. The TRC's process should be completely specified. The Plan should
also include statements limiting all review decisions of the TRC to the Plan's
specific criteria.

Who in the County is responsible for transmitting the County’s decision to the
DEQ?

Item five refers to the DEQ’s permitting process and should be deleted.

The reference to Act 641 in item two under the Siting Criteria for Other Solid
Waste Facilities heading needs to be changed to Part 115.

Recycling centers that accept only source separated materials are not solid
waste facilities and are not subject to solid waste planning or the provisions of
this Plan.

The reference to primary siting criteria at the bottom of the page needs to refer to
the correct page numbers. Some of the landfill siting criteria seem far too strict
for other types of facilities such as processing plants and transfer stations.

The Plan should require a signed statement from the developer instead of an
agreement regarding reporting of waste received.

The second paragraph needs to be rewritten as specific criteria. The “factors
shall be considered” portion is subjective and not approvable.

The reference to page numbers under the Secondary Siting Criteria heading
needs to refer to the correct page numbers. Use of the secondary criteria and
point threshold for these disposal area types is inappropriate and probably will
prohibit siting. ‘

Section B is not necessary and is confusing. It should be deleted. If the County
wants to allow some facilities without going through the siting process, the Plan
should just say so. References to Act 641 on this page need to be changed to

Part 115.

The Enforcement heading is supposed to contain a description of how the
County will enforce the Plan. The Plan must identify some local authority that
has the power to enforce the Plan, including the power to identify and bring suit
for violations of the Plan.
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Mr. Fabian Knizacky 5 October 7, 1999

Page 83

Page 84

Page 130

Page 132

In item two, | am not sure how the listed ordinances affect solid waste disposal
areas. Any local ordinance included in this section must be specifically identified
and the language of the ordinance included. A description of how the ordinance
applies to the Plan must also be included.

The Plan states that more than ten years of capacity has been identified,
however, | could not find any calculation or specific demonstration of disposal
capacity in the Plan to confirm that over ten years of capacity exists. Although
the Plan includes documentation from several landfills to that effect, a calculation
of available landfill capacity should be shown in relation to the County’s solid
waste production and total disposal needs.

What group, company, or governmental entity does each person on the Solid
Waste Planning Committee (SWPC) represent? Only their names are listed.

These are not resolutions from a board of commissioners approving one
municipality to be included in an adjacent county’s Plan as the first paragraph
states. Rather, they seem to concern entering into reciprocal agreements with
other counties for waste flows. It is not necessary to include these resolutions in

the Plan.

Neither Part 115 nor the Rules require establishment of reciprocal agreements.
Requiring reciprocal agreements is strictly a local decision. | am not sure if the
County requires signed reciprocal agreements as a condition to the import or
export of waste from Mason County or not. The Plan should clearly state the
County’s position.. If the County is going to require reciprocal agreements for
export, the landfill capacity in other counties may not be counted until an
agreement is signed.

| appreciate the efforts that you have shown in the development of the Plan and the degree to
which the Plan Format has been utilized. This makes the document much easier to review. |
hope that these comments are useful to Mason County as you attempt to develop an
approvable Plan. If you have any further questions or comments, please feel free to contact me
by telephone, or by e-mail, at johnsoj1@state.mi.us.

Sincerely,

James E. Johnson

Solid Waste Management Unit
Waste Management Division
517-373-4738

cc:  Mr. Seth Phillips, DEQ
Mason County File
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Mason County
Board of Commissioners

i Court House
304 E. Ludington Ave., Ludington, Michigan 49431
(231) 843-7999 « Fax (231) 843-1972

Thomas M. Posma
Chairman

Ronald E. Sanders
Vice Chairman

Ilvan J. Anthony
County Clerk

Fabian L. Knizacky
Administrator

December 22, 1999

Mr. Stan Idziak

Solid Waste Management Unit
Solid Waste Program Section

Waste Management Division
Department of Environmental Quality

Harold Madden
" hD's;“G"" ! PO Box 30473
ichael G. Schneider ;
District 2 Lansing, MI 48909-7973
John E. Henderson oles
District 3 Dear Mr. Idziak:
]amf,s,f{;i gigke”"" Thank you for agreeing to review the responses of the Mason County Solid
Je Aybicki Waste Planning Committee to DEQ’s comments on the draft of our Solid
District 5 Waste Plan update. We have responded to those comments in the same
Thomas M. Posma order that they were provided:
District 6 ’
Chagestﬁge;bach The Table of Contents has been changed to include only a numerical
ISt . .
Ronaid E. Sanders numbering system for the entire Plan. (See Attached New Page)
District 8 Page 1 will reflect the date when the final Plan is submitted to the DEQ for
Robert A. Genson
District 9 approval.

Page 2 has been corrected to reﬂect a headmg for the right column.  (See
Attached New Page) :

Pages 17 and Page 41 have been changed to provide location information
on this facility. (See Attached New Pages)

Page 26 has been changed to include the manner of evaluation and ranking
of the alternatives. (See Attached New Page)

Page 27 has been changed to reflect that a multi-county incinerator was
Alternative #4. (See Attached New Page)

Page 30 has been changed to specify that Alternative #1 is the selected
system. (See Attached New Page) '

Page 32 has been changed to provide a definition of the terms “primary”
and “contingency: disposal. (See Attached New Page)
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Page 2 - Mr. Stan Idziak

Page 36 has been changed to refer to pages 37 through 45. (See Attached New Page)

Page 48 has been changed to reflect only volume reduction techniques. (See Attached New
Page) .
Page 52 has been changed to refer to pages 53 through 58. (See Attached New Page)

Page 64 has been changed to eliminate references to Type I hazardous waste landfills. Item
A.1 has been changed to reflect a ten year planning period and references to Act 641 have
been changed Part 115. (See Attached New Page)

Page 65 has been changed to reflect the 66 months threshold for siting a landfill.
References to Act 641 have been changed to Part 115, references related to floodplains and
wetlands have been changed to the appropriate Rules. We have eliminated the word
“sensitive” from the references to environmental areas. (See Attached New Page)

Page 66 has been changed to reflect that the wellhead protection area should specify as area
approved by the DEQ not as defined by the EPA. Item three was changed to refer to Part
361, Farmland and Open Space Preservation, of 451. Item five was changed to a 66
months capacity. Item six was changed to require a signed statement from the developer
regarding compliance with the operational requirements. (See Attached New Page)

Page 67 has been changed to reflect the deletion of the terms sufficient capacity and suitable
conditions. Based on our conversations, on October 26 we left the minimum site size of
320 acres. Items nine and ten were ‘changed to reflect the concerns expressed. (See

Attached New Page)

Page 68 has been changed to include a zero score for facilities that do not meet all the
conditions for a natural site. References to Act 641 have been changed to Part 115. (See
Attached New Page) |

Page 71 has been changed to increase the total point threshold from 110 points to 130
points making it easier for a site to be sited. This was accomplished by changing the
scoring for secondary criteria numbers 2, 5, 6 and 7. References to Act 641 have been
changed to Part 115. (See Attached New Pages) ‘

Page 72 has been changed to reflect that references to Act 641 have been changed to Part
115. (See Attached New Page) ; o

Page 73 item a. has been changed to state that an advisory analysis is required if available,
item g. was changed to include a statement that any portion of the fee not used by the
County in the site review process will be returned to the applicant. (See Attached New

Page)

Page 74 has been changed to reflect our conservations on October 26 about items m
through o and the TRC. (See Attached New Page)
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Page 75 has been changed to reflect that the Designated Planning Agency is responsible for
transmitting the County’s decision to the DEQ. We agreed on October 26 that item five
was for informational purposes and could remain. We have deleted recycling centers from
the solid waste planning or the provisions of this Plan. The reference to primary siting
criteria at the bottom of the page was changed to reflect the correct pages. We included
new siting criteria for processing plants and transfer stations. References to Act 641 have

been changed to Part 115. (See Attached New Page)

Page 76 has been changed to require a signed statement from the developer instead of an
agreement regarding reporting of waste received. The second paragraph has been rewritten
to delete the words “factors shall be considered” portion. The reference to page numbers
under the Secondary Siting criteria heading has been changed to refer to the correct page
numbers. The use of secondary criteria and point threshold has been eliminated from this

section. (See Attached New Page)

Pages 77 and 78 have been changed as Section B has been deleted. (See Attached New
Page)

Page 79 has been changed to reflect that the County Administrator will enforce the Plan.
(See Attached New Page)

‘Page 83, item two, has been changed by deleting the reference to local ordinances. (See

Attached New Page)

Page 84 has been changed to include a narrative on how the ten years of capacity has been
identified. (See Attached New Page)

Page 130 has been changed to reflect the group, company or governmental entity that each
person represents. (See Attached New Page)

Page 132 has been changed to eliminate resolutions relating to reciprocal agreements. (See
Attached New Page)

Thank you again for your assistance. Please feel free to contact me, at (231) 843-7999, if
you have any questions concerning this request.

Sincerely,

Fobal 2 oot

Fabian L. Knizacky
Mason County Administrator
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet
on October 26, 1999 at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first
floor of the Mason County Service Building.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
OCTOBER 26, 1999

1:30 PM

1. Roll Call
2. Approval of Agenda

3. Approval of the June 29, 1999 minutes.
4. Reading of correspondence

5. Public Comments

6. Consideration of comments received at the public hearing and during the comment period

7. Approval of the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan and forwarding it to the
County Board of Commissioners

K3 Any other unfinished business

9. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet on November 30,
1999 at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first floor of the Mason County Service

Building.

Posted November 19, 1999 at 1:35 PM.
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4,

5.

6.

MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
NOVEMBER 30, 1999

1:30 PM

. Roll Call

Approval of Agenda
Approval of the October 26, 1999 minutes
Reading of correspondence

Public Comments

Consideration of changes made to the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan as a

result of comments received at the public hearing and during the comment period

(1

Approval of the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan and forwarding it to the

* County Board of Commissioners

8.

Any other unfinished business

9. Adjournment
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee will meet
on December 28, 1999 at 1:30 PM in the conference room located on the first
floor of the Mason County Service Building.

Posted December 15, 1999 at 3:49 PM.
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MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA
DECEMBER 28, 1999

1:30 PM

. Roll Call

—

N

. Approval of Agenda

. Approval of the November 30, 1999 minutes

W

4. Reading of correspondence

5. Public Comments

6. Approval of the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan and forwarding it to the
County Board of Commissioners

(" ~ 7. Any other unfinished business

8. Adjournment
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

PLANNING COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT PROCEDURE:

A notice was published in the Ludington Daily News advertising vacancies on a number of
county boards and committees including the Mason County Solid Waste Committee for
candidates. Current members of the Solid Waste Committee were also contacted to
determine interest for re-appointment. The appointments of all fourteen members were
made at the December 10, 1997 meeting of the Mason County Board of Commissioners.

After the resignation of one general public representative, the vacancy was filled at the May
13, 1998 meeting of the Mason County Board of Commissioners.

One general public representative Steve McVicker was replaced by Donald Jesuale at the
December 8, 1999 meeting of the Mason County Board of Commissioners effective on

January 1, 2000. :

All of the appointments were made at public meetings and the general public was allowed to
comment at both meetings.
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" A CHANCETO GET INVFVED *~

e Board of Commissioners, of the County 'of Ma‘ , are’ seekrng Mason

Junty residents who are mterested in servmg the commum

by being ap-
’llste*a»f)el \76 *%”% Y0¥ e'“Q op

inted to one of the Commrssrons or Boards:

Qp_enmgs 1+, Commission'or Bo: i inning * *Ending- "
) .2 . Cooperatlve Extensi ; «-QB ,“12-31-00

) *1  MasonCounty Plannlng Commlssron =0 |
)1 1 Mason County Zoning Commjission ?

) 1 Mason County Zonlng Board of Ap"' eals

) 3 | ,:F‘i.Mason County Solid Waste Planning Com, %1-1-9 St
I Mason County Department of Pubhc Works A 1‘ 98 53 J2-341 -00
) 1 ; P VR
: . '2 Mason County Burldmg Authorrty

] ', Mason " County District Library
r 2 Mason County Drstnct Lrbrary

ich committee you wish to’ serve on These appomtments wrll_ﬁbe rnade be-‘_
3en now and January 1st ) g A L

=ase mail to the offloe of Fabran L Knlzaoky ‘Mason.County Admlnrstrator

4 Ludrngton Avenue Ludmgton MI 490431 before November 13, 1997.
..[Fabian L. szacky

Mason County Administrator
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Committee member names and the company, group, or governmental entity represented
from throughout the County are listed below.

Four representatives of the solid waste management industry:

1. Todd Harland representing Manistee County Landfill

2. Wesley Hasenbank representing Mason County Department of Public Works
3. Edward Jabrocki representing Waste Reduction Systems

4. John Kreinbrink representing Mason County Department of Public Works
One representative from an industrial waste generntor:

1. Tom Merchant representing Great Lakes Casting Corporation

‘Two representatives from environmental mterest groups from organizations that are active
within the County:

1. Larry Kivela representing AFFEW (A Few Friends for the Environment of the World

and their Chlldren)
2. Norm Letsinger representing Windy Hill Farms Comp‘osting.

One representative from County government. All government representatives shall be
elected officials or a designee of an elected official.

1. Jerome Rybicki is a Mason County Commissioner.

One representative from township government:

1. Jim Riffle is the Custer Township Supervisor.

One representative from city government:

1. Gilbert Larsen is a member of the Ludington City Council.

One representative from the regional solid waste planning agency:

1. Charles Eberbach is a member of the West Michrgan Shoreline Regronal Commission.
,Three representatives from the general pubhc who reside within the County

1. Laude Hartrum is a Mason County resident.

2. Duane Jorgensen (Resigned) and Ralph Hendricks (appointed May 13, 1998) are Mason
County residents.

3. Steve McVicker (Replaced) and Donald Jesuale(appointed December 8,1999 for a term
- beginning January 1, 2000) are Mason County residents. ,

C-4
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ATTACHMENTS

APPENDIX D

Plan Implementation Strategy

The following discusses how the County intends to implement the plan and provides
documentation of acceptance of responsibilities from all entities that will be performing a

role in the plan.

The County of Mason will utilize current recycling, composting and solid waste facilities.
The Mason County Solid Waste Management Committee and the Designated Planning
Agency will oversee the review and implementation of this Plan. The Mason County Solid
Waste Management Committee and the Designated Planning Agency will enforce the siting

criteria.
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Attachment D-2 is not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

D-2
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ATTACHMENTS

Listed Capacity

Documentation from landfills that the County has access to their listed capacity.

D-3
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May 6, 1999

Mr. Fabian Knizacky
Mason County Board of Commissioners

304 E. Ludington Ave.
Ludington, MI 49431

Dear Mr. Knizacky

Mason County is updating the Mason County Solid Waste Plan. In this Plan the DEQ
requires all landfills listed in the Plan to provide a letter of available capacity and the
landfill’s willingness to service Mason County’s solid waste disposal needs. The
following statement would be adequate to meet the DEQ requirements:

The Manistee County Landfill, Inc., currently has 12 years capacity and is willing to (\ _
service Mason County’s solid waste disposal needs. ‘

Thank you for your time and efforts in this matter.
; Sincerely ,
Todd M. Harlghd

General Manager

Iv

180
3890 Camp Rd. ¢ Manistee, MT 49660 ¢ (616) 7234940 + (616) 723-4105 FAX




Demolition Engineers ¢ Landfill Operation
Asbestos Abatement * Dumpster Service
Salvaged Building Materials e Commercial & Residential Waste Servic
Excavating & Underground Services ¢ Portable Toilet Service
Concrete Recycling e Land Development
i June 2, 1999 Companies Andrew C. Vredenburg
General Counsel

Mr. Fabian L. Knizacky

Mason County Adminstrator

Mason County Board of Commissioners
304 East Ludington Avenue

Ludinguoii, Michigan 49431

Dear Knizacky:

[ am writing in responée to your May 3, 1999 letter to Mr. Doug Carson, Pitsch
Companies Sanitary Division. Mr. Carson.is no longer employed with Pitsch Companies.
I have been asked to respond to your letter in his absence.

_ The purpose of this letter is document that Mason County has access to the Pitsch
Sanitary Landfill. Currently Pitsch Sanitary Landfill has capacity to accept some waste
. from Mason County and further, Pitsch Sanitary Landfill is in the process of obtaining a
( v construction permit to construct a ten (10) acre cell which will provide enough capacity
) to accept waste from Mason County.

If there is additional information you would like from Pitsch Sanitary Landfill,
please do not hesitate to contact me at (616) 36 ,489./5 or at the address below in Grand

Rapids, Michigan.
rew C. Vredenburg
ACV:rd
HOME OFFICE: SANITARY DIVISION:
675 Richmond, N.W., Grand Rapids, MI 49504 7905 Johnson Rd., Belding, MI 48809
181 Telephone: (616) 794-3050
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AUTUMN HILLS RECYCLING & DISPOSAL FACILY

w A ; .a A WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
# ? 4
i 2 .
700 56th Avenue - i

Zeeland, MI 49464 {
(616) 688-5777
(616) 688-5781 Fax

May 19, 1999

Fabian L. Knizacky

Mason County Administrator
304 E. Ludington Ave.
Ludington, MI 49431

Dear Mr. Knizacky;

This letter is follow-up to your request dated 5-3-99 concerfn'ng Autumn Hills RDF.
Two items should be noted. First, the Ottawa County Solid Waste Plan does include
Mason County. Secondly, Autumn Hills RDF can and will accept waste from Mason

County. Autumn Hills currently disposes of approximately 600,000 tons of solid waste
per year. At that current rate Autumn Hills has capacity in excess of 20 years.

We look forward to serving Mason County. : (
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May 25, 1999

To Whom It May Concern:

The Ottawa County Farms Landfill will accept 100% of Mason County’s Type IV/III
Waste for disposal.

Sincerely,
OTTAWA COUNTY FARMS LANDFILL

y e

Robert L. Carr
General Manager

RLC/ddm
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May 21, 1999

Mr. Fabian L. Knizacky
Mason County Administrator
Court House

304 E. Ludington Ave.
Ludington, MI 49431

RE: County Solid Waste Management Plan

Dear Mr. Knizacky:

This letter is being sent to you in response to your correspondence dated May 3, 1999. In
your letter, you requested that BFI Arbor Hills provide a letter to document available
capacity to provide disposal services for waste generated by Mason County.

At this time, BFI Arbor Hills Landfill has 16.4 years of disposal capacity remaining.
Mason county is identified on the MDEQ’s Import/Export Authorization List as a county
that Washtenaw County is agreeable to accepting waste from. As such, BFI is
comfortable providing you with this letter stating that we would be able to allow access to
our Arbor Hills Landfilt should Mason County require out-of-county disposal.

You will also find enclosed a copy of our most current landfill license as issued by the
MDEQ. Please feel free to contact me should you have any comments or concerns with
regard to this response.

Sincerely,

Kathleen A. Klein
Public Sector Representative

cc:  John Myers, D.V.P.

Arbor Hills Landfill - 10690 W. Six Mile Rd. - Northville, Michigan 48167
Phone 248-349-7230 - Fax 248-349-7572
www.bfi.com
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ATTACHMENTS

Maps

Maps showing locations of solid waste disposal facilities used by the County.
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~ TYPE OF FACILITY: Type II Landfill

(-

" RESPONSIBLE PARTY TO CONTACT: Mr. Gary Pitsch, Vice President

*
1}

DES Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Waste Management Division

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AREA OPERATING LICENSE

This license is issued under the provisions of Part 115 Solid Waste Management of the Nawral Resources and Environmental Protecdon Act, 1994
PA 451, MCL 324.11501 et seq, (Part 115), 10 authorize the operation of the solid waste disposal area (Facility) in the Smtz of Michigan. This

license does not obviate the necessity of obtaining other clearances and permits as may be required by state law. -
- !

FACILITY NAME: Pitsch Sanitary Landfiil

GRANTED TO: Pitsch Sanitary Landfill, Inc.

FACILITY ID: 34-000016
COUNTY: Ionia

LJCENSE NO. 8456

ISSUE DATE: May 22, 1997
EXPIRATION DATE: May 22, 1999

FACILITY DESCRIPTION: The Pitsch Sanitary Landfill consists of 78.44 acres located in the N 1/2 of e -
NE 1/4 of Section 7, T8N, R7W, Orleans Township, lonia County, Michigan, a$
identified in Antachment A and fully described in this license. .

AREA AUTHORIZED FOR DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE: Phases Il and IV

Pitsch Sanitary Landfiil, Inc.
675 Richmond, N.W.

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49504
616-363-4895

& FIRST OPERATING LICENSE: This License No. 8456 .is the first license issued for Phase IV.

. RENEWAL OPERATING LICENSE: This License No. 8456 supersedes and replaces Solid Waste Disposal
Area License No. 8061 issued to Pitsch Wrecking Company on April 12, 1993, as it penams to Phases I

through III
This license is subject 1o revocation by the Director of the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (Director) if the Director finds that the
disposal area is not being consmructed or operated in accordance with the approved plans. the conditions of a permit or license, this act, or the thles

promulgated under this act. Failure to comply with the terms and provisions of this license may resuit in legal action leading 10 civil andijor
criminal penalties as stipulated in Part 115. This license shall be available through the licensee during the entire effective date and remains e

property of the Director.

THIS LICENSE IS NOT TRANSFERABLE.

Ot (Der

" JoansH. Peck, Acting Chief, Solid Waste Program Section

Waste Management Division

Fotm Revised 11/29/95




RESOURCE RECOVERY PROJECT
OF IONIA COUNTY

Minutes: Site Review Board -- Pitsch Landfill Expansion November 20, 1997, _3:30 PM

Members Present: Robert Dunton, Gary Pitsch, Paul Lewis, Joel Noe, Ray Greene
Members Absent: Phil Wilsen
Others Present: Don Lehman, Solid Waste Coordinator

1. Gary Pitsch gave the SRB a 40 minute tour of the landfill facility in Orleans Township.

The Board returned to the conference room at the landfill office and reviewed the Pitsch
clxpanszon proposal and the County's SWMP siting criteria.

The following issues of concern were discussed.

-- Tress along Johason (especially on east side) are a concern when Johnson is upgraded
to all-season capacity. The preservation of these trees should be a very high priority.

-- Concarns about Pitsch owned ponds on the east sidé of Johnson Road. Possibility of ~
posting and/or fencing due 1o safety concerns was discussed.

-- Private wells and contaminates.

-- How is waste monitored that is disposed of in the landfill. (Regional DEQ office, 1-2
times per month) Only non-hazardous waste and non-hazardous soils are permitted 1o
be disposed of in the landfill. o

4. After comparing the Pitsch proposal and the siting criteria, the SRB voted 4-0 that the
proposal is consistent with thé SWMP's eriteria.

Meeting ad)Oumed at 5:50 PM.

100 Ubrary Street, lonia, M! 48846
Phone; (616)527-5357 Fax: (6161527-5312
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Figure 1
Regional Location “Hap
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Aqua—-Tech Consultants, T

1336 Scrbner NW .-,
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Autumn Hills - Ottawa County

Ottawa
Allegan
Kent
Muskegon
Montcalm
Oceana *
Newago *
Ionia *
Barry *
Kalamazoo *
St. Joseph *
Van Buren *
Calhoun *
Berrien *
Branch *
Cass *
Clare *
Clinton *
Eaton *
Osceola *
Gratiot *
Isabella *
Lake *
Mason *
Mecosta *

* Counties approved for Special Waste only.
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Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Waste Management Division

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AREA OPERATING LICENSE

This license is issued under the provisions of Part 115 Solid Waste Managzment of the Natwral Rasources and Enviconmental Protection Act, 199+ |
PA 451, MCL 32‘4”‘11501 et seq. (Part 115), to authorize the operation of the solid waste disposal area (Faciiity) in the Stace of Michigan. This ;
license does not obviate the necessity of obtining other clearances and permits as may be required by stz law.

DE.

»

FACILITY NAME: Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfill

GRANTED TO: BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc.

TYPE OF FACILITY: Type II Landfill

FACILITY ID: 81-000015

COUNTY: Washtenaw

LICENSE NUMBER: 8510

1 ISSUE DATE: February 13, 1998

EXPIRATION DATE: February 13, 2000

FACILITY DESCRIPTION: The Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfill consists of 337.24 acres
located in Section 13, T1S, R7E, Salem Township, Washtenaw County,

‘Michigan, as identified in Attachment A and fully described in this license.

AREA AUTHORIZED FOR DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE: Cell 1, portions of Cells 2 aI;d 3A, Cell 3B, and Cell 3C

RESPONSIBLE PARTY TO CONTACT: Mr. John C. Myers, P.E., District Vice President Q
BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc,
10690 West Six Mile Road
Northville, Michigan 48167
248-349-7230 |

RENEWAL OPERATING LICENSE: This License Number 8510 supersedes and replaces Solid Waste
Disposal Area License Number 8432 issued to Browning-Ferris Industries of Southeastern Michigan, Inc. on
February 4, 1997.

This license is subject to revocation by the Director of the Michigan Department of Environmental Qualiy (Director) if the Director finds tha: the
disposal area is not being constructed or operated in accordance with the approved plans, the corditiors of a permmit or license, this act, oc the ruls
promulgated under this act. Failure to comply with the terms and provisions of this license may rasult in legal action leading to civil anc/or
criminal penalties as stipulated in Part 115, This license shall be available through the licensee during the entre effsctive date and ramains the
property of the Director. :

THIS LICENSE IS NOT TRANSFERABLE.

. 7

\KQC‘)M £

Joan H/Peck, Acting Chief, Solid Waste Program Section
Waste Management Division

Form Revised 11/29/95
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_ Applicant: BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc.

Facility Namea: Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfll
Operating License Number: 8510
February 1998

The licensee shall comply with all terms of this license and the provisions of Part 115 and its rules. This license
includes the license application and any attachments to this license. v

1. The licensee shall operate the Facility in a manner that will prevent violations of any state or federal law.
2. The following portions of the Facility are authorized to receive solid waste by this license:

a. EXISTING UNITS OR PORTIONS OF AN EXISTING UNIT: Ths cells identified as Cell 1
(36.69 acres) and a portion of Cell 2 (21.32 acres) received solid waste as of October 9, 1993.
The total area is 58.01 acres.

b. LATERAL EXTENSIONS OF AN EXISTING UNIT: The cells identified as a portion of Cell 3A
(14.44 acres), Cell 3B (24.17 acres), and Cell 3C1 (10.10 acres) were not licensed to receive waste as
of October 9, 1993, but are authorized to receive solid waste by this license. The total area is 48.71
acres.

c. [0 NEW UNIT(S): N/A
3. The following portions of the Facility will be authorized to receive solid waste by this license:

a. Unconstructed and uncertified Cell 3C2/5A has been bonded in accordance with the financial
‘requirements of Section 11523(a). This disposal area shall be authorized to receive waste, as part-of this
license, if acceptable certification is submitted to the Department as per Saction 11516(5) of Part 115 and
determined to be consistent with Part 115 and the administrative rules by the Department. The
certification shall verify that the Cell 3C2/5A construction was in accordance with Construction Permit
Number 0302 issued on July 1, 1994 and subsequent amendments to the permit, and Part 115 and the
administrative rules.

4. The following portions of the Facility are NOT authorized to receive solid waste by this license:
a. CLOSED UNIT OR A CLOSED PORTION OF A UNIT The following units are closed:

i. TIPRE-EXISTING UNIT: The unit identified as Arbor Hills East Sanitary Landfill had final
closure certified on November 15, 1990. This unit was permittec and licensed separately from
Arbor Hills West.

ii. EXISTING UNIT(S): The units identified as portions of Cell 2 (5.11 acres) and portions of
Cell 3A (1.46 acres) had final closure certified on February 21, 1996. The total area
is 6.57 acres.

b. [J UNCLOSED CELL(S): N/A

c. UNCONSTRUCTED CELL(S): The cells identified as Cell 4 (30.60 zcres), Cell SB/C
(29.35 acres), and Cell 6 (23.43 acres), are NOT authorized to receive waste by this license.
The total area is 83.38 acres.

Foem Revised 11729195
Page 2
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Applicant: BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc
Facility Name: Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfill
Operating License Number: 8510

February 1998

5. The attached map (Attachment A) shows the facility, the area permitted for construction, monitoring points
detention pond, leachate storage tanks, co-generation facility, flare, site roads, and related appurtenances.

6. Issuance of this license is based on the assumption that the information submitted in the Application for Sohd Was:2
Disposal Area License (Application) received by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (Departmen:)
on November 19, 1997, and any subsequent amendments is accurate. Any material or intentional inaccuracies
found in this information may be grounds for the revocation or modification of this license or other enforcement
action. The licensee shall inform the Department's Waste Management Division, Jackson District Supervisor, of
any known material or intentional inaccuracies in the information of the Applica:ion which would affect the
licensee's ability to comply with the applicable rules or license conditions.

7. This license is issued based on the Department’s review of the Application for the Arbor Hills West Expanded
Sanitary Landfill dated November 19, 1997, The Application consists of the foliowing:

a. Application, Form EQP-5507.
b. Fee in the amount of $15,000.00.

c. Drawing “Auachment A" by Midwestern Consulting Inc., indicating comp'iance with horizontal limits of
constructed portions of landfill and site acreage.

d. Construction Documentation Report for BFI-Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landﬁll Cell 3C1, dat
November 17, 1997, prepared by STS Consultans, Ltd. '

e. Restrictive Covenant. ) , ( N

i. NO RESTRICTIVE COVENANT: A restrictive covenant was r.ot included with this applicaion
as it has been filed with the county register of deeds and a copy is zlready on file with the
Department.

ii. {J RESTRICTIVE COVENANT: N/A

f. The financial assurance documents are listed below:

Type Number Amount Expiration Date
Surety Bond 8145-52-51 . $9,994,406.00  November 18, 1998
Perpetual Care Fund Trust Number 404342 $1,186,842.00 N/A

i FINANCIAL ASSURANCE REQUIRED BY SECTION 11523(1)(2): The cells identified as .
Cell 1, Cell 2, Cell 3A, Cell 3B, Cell 3C1, and Cell 3C2/5A have a financial assurance mech'ams:a
that is in accordance with the financial assurance requirements of F Section 11523(1)(). Finar"la'
assurance required, based on the application calculation worksheet entitled “Form A Financial.
Assurance Required,” is equal to $11,181,248. This has been provided as indicated above.

Form Revised 1172995

Page 3
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Applicant: BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc,
Facility Name: Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfill
Operating License Number: 8510

February 1998

ii. Perpetual Care Fund Trust Agreement signed by Mr. John C. Myers, District Vice President,
BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc., and the Department on May 28, 1997. PR

g. WASTE CHARACTERIZATION: Petition to reclassify municipal incinerator ash dated

December 20, 1993. The licensee is approved to take reclassified municipal incinerator ash genzrated
by the Grosse-Pointes Clinton Refuse Disposal Authority, as approved in the letter from the Department
dated February 10, 1995, as long as the conditions described in the approval letter are met.

8. The following documents approved with Construction Permit Numbers 0222 and 0302 issuad to Browning-
Ferris Industries of Southeastern Michigan, Inc. on August 23, 1990 and July 1, 1994, are incorporated in this
license by reference (if the documents have been amended and approved, the latest date of revision is listed):

a.

uq

Engineering Report titled, “Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfill, Washtenaw Couaty, Michigas.
Act 641 Type II Construction Permit Application, Volumes 1, 2, and 3, BFI,” prepared by Midwestern
Consultants, Inc., Groundwater Associates, Inc,, STS Consultants, Ltd., Applied Science and
Technology, Inc, (ASTI) and Geosyntec Consultants, dated October 1993, and revised as noted
throughout Item 8.

Engineering Plans titled, “Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfill, Browning Ferris Industries of
Southeastern Michigan, Inc.,” prepared by Midwestern Consulting, Inc. and revised September 1, 1994,

- Operation Plans titled, “Operation Plans per Rule 911,” contained in Volume 1, Section 7, of the Enginzering
~ Report, prepared by Midwestemn Consulting, Inc., dated October 1993, and revised Juns 22, 1994.

Construction Quality Assurance Program titled, “Construction QA Plans per Rule 916,” contained in
Volume 1, Section 8, of the Engineering Report prepared by STS Consultants, Ltd., dated October 1993,
and revised June 23, 1994,

“Engineering Evaluation of Landfill Slope Stability and Foundation Performance,” prepared by o
Geosyntec Consultants, dated October 13, 1993, and revised June 16, 1994 and June 23, 1994, containzc
in Volume 3 of the Engineering Report. '

Topographic Maps prepared by Midwestern Consulting, Inc., contained in the Engineering Plans, revisad
June 24, 1994. '

Environmental Assessment titled, “Environmental Assessment Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanita{)’
Landfill,” prepared by Applied Science and Technology, Inc. (ASTI), dated October 9, 1993, revised oo
June 9, 1994, and June 22, 1994, and contained ia Volume 1, Section 2, of the Enginzering Report.

Hydrogeological Report titled, “Hydrogeological Investigation Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary
Landfill,” prepared by Groundwater Associates, Inc., Westerville, Ohio, dated October 1993, and
contained in Volume 2 of the document described in Item 8.a.

Surface Water Monitoring Plan contained in the report titled, “Hydrogsological Monitoring Plan,” prepared
by Groundwater Associates, Inc., Westerville, Ohio and revised June 16, 1994 and June 24, 1994.
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Applicant: BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc.
Facility Name: Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfill
Operating License Number: 8510

February 1998

10.

1.

13.

j. Hydrogeological Monitoring plan titled, “Proposed Hydrogeological Monitoring Plan,” prepared by

Groundwater Associates, Inc., Westerville, Ohio, dated January 1994, and revised June 16, 1994.

k. Subsurface Drain Monitoring Plan included in the Groundwater Monitoring Plan which is a component of

the “Hydrogeological Monitoring Plan,” prepared by Groundwater Associatss, Inc., dated January 1994
and revised June 16, 1994,

I. Remedial Action Plan titled, “BFI-Arbor Hills East Remedial Action Plan,” prepared by Browning-Ferris
Industries of Southeastern Michigan, Inc., and dated June 24, 1994.

m. Explosive Gas Control and Monitoring Plan titled, “Explosive Gas Monitoring Plan,” a component of the
Hydrogeological Monitoring Plan prepared by Groundwater Associates, Inc., dated January 1994 and
revised June 16, 1994,

The following additional documents, approved since the issuance of the construction permits referenced in
Item 8, are incorporated in this license by reference:

a. “Design Summary Leachate Storage Facility for Arbor Hills Sanitary Landfill,™ dated July 1991, and
approved October 30, 1991.

b. “Construction Documentation Report, 1995 Final Cover Construction Arbor Hills West Expanded
Sanitary Landfill Northville, Michigan” dated February 21, 1996.

c. Hydrogeological Monitoring Plan, dated January 1994 and revised June 16, 1994, June 24, 1994, and
January 31, 1997.

CONSENT ORDER: Number 641-07-245-07-89-91A entered on August 22, 1989 and altered on
May 23, 1991, is incorporated into this license by reference.

The licensee shall repair any portion of the certified liner or leachate collection system which is found to be
deficient or damaged during the term of this license unless determined otherwise by the Department; or
unless the placement of waste consistent with normal operating practices makes it impractical.

The licensee shall have repairs to any portion of the certified liner or leachate collection system recertiﬁed by
a registered professional engineer and approved by the Department before receiving waste in that portion of

the certified liner or leachate collection system in accordance with R 299.4921. The licensee shall su.bmit the
recertification to the Department’s Waste Management Division, Jackson District Supervisor, for review and

approval.
Hydrogeological Monitoring

a. HYDROGEOLOGICAL MONITORING PLAN IS APPROVED AND IN COMPLIANCE: .The
licensee shall conduct hydrogeological monitoring in accordance with the approved hydrogeological
monitoring plan, dated January 1994 and revised June 16, 1994, June 24, 1994, and January 31, 1997.
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Applicant: BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc.
Facility Name: Arbor Hills West Expanded Sanitary Landfil]
Operating License Number: 8510

February 1998

14.

1s.

16.

17.

The sampling analytical results shall be submitted to the Department’s Waste Masagement Division, Jackson
District Office. v

Secondary Collection System

a. ACTION FLOW RATE FOR A SCS: The active portions of the units authorized to receive waste
by this license contain a secondary collection system. The action flow rat2 is 110 gallons/acre/day.

b. [J ACTION FLOW RATE FOR A SCS USED AS A LEAK DETECTION SYSTEM: N/A
. OJ BASELINE CONCENTRATION: N/A

d. [0 A SECONDARY COLLECTION SYSTEM IS NOT REQUIRED. N/A

VARIANCES: None

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

a. The licensee has been granted alternate daily cover approvals to place geosyntzstic covers, contaminated
soils, and off-specification compost, and paper mill sludge in accordance with R 229.4429 and the
General Operatmo Stipulations approved on Apnl 7, 1994 ard July 10, 1695.

b. Prior to constructing Cell 4, the licensee shall construct the entire gravity draialine shown on the
engineering plans as described in Item 8b and submit a report to the Jackson District, Waste Management
Division, documenting that the isolation distance to the groundwater has been maintained. If the
Department determines that the extent of dewatering by the gravity drain is iradequate, the permittee shall

implement an approved plan for additional dewatering of the upper aquifar.

This license shall remain in effect until its expiration date, unless revoked or continued in effect, as provided
by 1969 PA 306, as amended, or unless superseded by the issuance of a subszquaat license.

END OF LICENSE
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ARBOR HILLS WEST EXPANDED SANITARY LANDFILL
OVERALL SITE FACILITIES

(FOR INFORMATION ONLY ~ NOT PART OF ARBOR HILLS
WEST EXPANDED SANITARY LANDFILL LICENSE APPLICATION)
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ATTACHMENTS

Inter-County Agreements

Copies of Inter-County agreements with other Counties (if any).

Copies of Inter-County agreements that the County of Mason has with other counties are
attached.

D-5
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MANISTEE AND MASON COUNTIES
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR A
RECIPROCAL AGREEMENT ON SOLID WASTE

FOR DAY-TO-DAY FLOW OF SOLID WASTE

Both Manistee County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and disposal of their
own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the regulations and
planning requirements of part 115 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, being the Solid Waste
Management Part of the Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, M.C.L.
324.11501 et. seq. (formerly P.A. 641 of 1978, as amended, (M.C.L. 299.401 et. seq., the Solid
Waste Management Act)), hereafter the “Act”.

The Act, and administrative rules promulgated pursuant to the Act, requires both the receiving
and sending county's solid waste management plan include statements as to where solid waste will
be sent to and/or received from, before wastes can be transported between counties.

The Manistee County Solid Waste Plan of 1998/9, page 59 provides for a mechanism to enter
into reciprocal agreements such as this one:

The MasonCounty Solid Waste Plan of 1998/9, page __ provides for a mechanism to enter into
reciprocal agreements such as this one:

A Manistee County will agree to accept solid waste from Mason County, for primary day-to-
day and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities in Manistee County so long as:
1. The solid waste facility(ies) is(are) open to the public; and
2. Users are not to be subject to discrimination in service or tipping fee published

price structure (which can include volume discount and special handling).

B. MasonCounty will agree to accept solid waste from Manistee County for primary day-to-
day and/or standby backup disposal in soiid waste facilities in Mason County so long as:
1. The solid waste facility(ies) is(are) open to the public; and
2. Users are not to be subject to discrimination in service or tipping fee published

price structure (which can include volume discount and special handling).

C MasonCounty may negotiate with Manistee County Landfill, Inc., (owned by Allied Waste
Systems, Inc.) for certain capacity guarantee, so long as the result of the negotiation does
not reduce the available disposal capacity for Manistee County (excluding solid waste
from Tondu Energy Systems, Inc. (40,000 tons per year) and Tenneco Packaging
Inc.(58,000 to 127,200 tons per year)) below 25,000 tons per year at the current plan
approved Manistee County Landfill, Inc., until year 2086.

This agreement may be terminated by either county upon receipt of a mutually agreeable notice

adequate to provide time for another method of primary (permanent) disposal and/or standby
disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two years.
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MANISTEE AND MASON COUNTIES MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR A
RECIPROCAL AGREEMENT ON SOLID WASTE FOR DAY-TO-DAY FLOW OF SOLID WASTE

page 2

Both counties agree to assume their own and separate liability, and assume financial responsibility
for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at their own cost, as would exist if this agreement had 4
never been entered into.

FOR MANISTEE COUNTY FOR MASON Cm
ey 4

Lol

Mrs. Sharlene Wild, Chair Fomns M. Poows , Chair

Manistee County Board of Mason County Board of

Commissioners Commissioners

Mrs. Marilyn Kliber, County Clerk Mr , Countyaerk e T A 7}
Date: Date: = —9 -CQ , v
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, all counties within the State of Michigan are subject to the regulations and planning
requirements of Section 11539a of Part 115, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural Resources
and Environmental Protection Act of 1994, P.A. 451 as amended (“The Act™); and

WHEREAS, Mason County and Oceana County are both State of Michigan Counties, are subject
to The Act and are therefore responsible for the collection and disposal of their own respective

solid waste; and

WHEREAS, The Act requires that both the importing and exporting county’s solid waste
management plan include statements as to where the solid waste will be transported and that the
receiving county will accept the solid waste before waste material may be transported between

counties.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That Oceana County will accept solid waste from
Mason County for both primary and contingency disposal, and will identify Mason County in its
future import authorization category for the disposal of solid waste if and when a solid waste
facility is sited within Oceana County so long as these facilities are open to the public and that
Mason County solid waste will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee price

structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That Mason County will agree to accept the import of solid
waste from Oceana County for both primary and contingency disposal in solid waste facilities -
within Mason County so long as these facilities are open to the public and that Oceana County (
solid waste will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee price structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That this agreement may be terminated by either Mason County
or Oceana County upon receipt of a mutually agreed upon notice that is adequate to provide for
the necessary time to identify and procure another primary solid waste disposal site. If adequate
notice is not mutually agreeable to either county, then adequate notice shall be determined as two

years.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED: That both Counties agree to assume their own and separate
liability and that both Counties agree to assume their own financial responsibility for any payments
for assessed damages, fines or penalties at their own cost as would exist if this agreement had

never been entered into.

FOR OCEANA COUNTY FOR MASON COUI;Yp

ia Tsbonil L 771/%»4? %/M S
Chau'person, Board of Commissioners Chairperson, Board of Confimissioners
jo -8&8-7§ Date: __ 3-9-79

Date:
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, all counties within the State of Michigan are subject to the regulations and planning
requirements of Section 115392 of Part 115, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural Resources
and Environmental Protection Act of 1994, P.A. 451, as amended (“The Act™); and

WHEREAS, Mason County and Newaygo County are both State of Michigan Counties, are
subject to “The Act” and are therefore responsible for the collection and disposal of their own

respective solid waste; and

WHEREAS, “The Act” requires that both the importing and exporting county’s solid waste
management plan include statements as to where the solid waste will be transported and that the
receiving county will accept the solid waste before waste material may be transported between

counties.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That Newaygo County will accept solid waste from
Mason County for both primary and contingency disposal, and will identify Mason County in its
future import authorization category for the disposal of solid waste if and when a solid waste
facility is sited within Newaygo County so long as these facilities are open to the public and that
Mason County solid waste will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee price

structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That Mason County will agree to accept the import of solid
-~ waste from Newaygo County for both primary and contingency disposal in solid waste facilities
- within Mason County so long as these facilities are open to the public and that Newaygo County
solid waste will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee price structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That this agreement may be terminated by either Mason County
or Newaygo County upon receipt of a mutually agreed upon notice that is adequate to provide for
the necessary time to identify and procure another primary solid waste disposal site. If adequate
notice is not mutually agreeable to either county, then adequate notice shall be determined as two

years.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED: That both Counties agree to assume their own and separate
liability and that both Counties agree to assume their own financial responsibility for any payments
for assessed damages, fines or penalties at their own cost as would exist if this agreement had

never been entered into.

FOR NEWAYGO COUNTY FOR MASON COUNTY
7
I ol T himis VA ren
Chairpersor@oard of Commissioners Chairperson, Board of Commissioners
Date: _January 6, 1999 Date: 3-9-97

Motion #980509
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL RESOLUTION/AGREEMENT

- WHEREAS, Lake County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and {
disposal of their own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the )
regulations and planning requirements of Section 115392 of Part 115, Solid Waste Management,
of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act 1994 P.A. 451 as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that both the receiving and sending county’s solid waste
management plan include statements as to where solid waste will be sent to and/or will be
received from, before waste can be transported between counties.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Lake County will agree to accept solid waste from
Mason County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its
borders so long as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in

services or tipping fee price structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mason County will agree to accept solid waste
from Lake County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its
borders so long as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in

services or tipping fee price structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this agreement may be terminated by either County
upon receipt of a mutually agreeable notice adequate to provide time for another method of
primary disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two .

years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that both Counties agree to assume their own and
separate liability, and assume financial responsibility for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at
their own cost, as would exist if this agreement had never been entered into.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that each County’s solid waste management plan shall
authorize the terms of this Resolution/Agreement.

FOR LAKE COUNTY FOR MASON COUNTY
Cg_d,.@o )—% < ' ;é (3074 A SFrrea
Chairman, Board Gf Comfissioners Chairman, Board of Commissioners

Date: ljl Ce/ [ 977 Date: 3-7-97
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County of Ottawa

s Health Department

Enuronmental Health Division 6169397 5645
12251 James Street Suite 200 Holland MI 49424-9675 Fax (616) 393-5643
April 22, 1999

Mr. Fabian L. Knizacky, Administrator
Mason County Court House

304 E. Ludington Avenue

Ludington MI 4943

Dear Mr. Knizacky

I am in receipt of your letter dated April 19, 1999, requesting that Ottawa County
enter into a reciprocal agreement with Mason County for disposal of solid waste. An
Agreement was included with your letter.

The Ottawa County Solid Waste Management Plan Update, February- 1999, will
recognize 24 counties for import/export authorization. The Plan groups these 24 counties
together in a market region and authorizes the import of a combined total of up to 1,500,000
tons per year. Ottawa County will also authorize the export of up to 100 percent of its waste
stream to these 24 counties who authorize the acceptance of solid waste from Ottawa County.
Mason County is included in the Ottawa County SWMP Update.

Ottawa County does not intend to enter into any formal agreements with other
counties beyond the requirements of PA 451, Part [15. Thus, | am returning to you the

unsigned originals of the Solid VWaste Reciprocal Resolution/Agreement. If you have any
questions, please feel free to call me at 616/393-5638.

Sincerely,

SONE.

Darwin J. Baas
Solid Waste Management Coordinator

enclosure
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.4 Import Authorization

in order to account for current and projected rates of growth in population, commercial
development, and the overall increase of the industrial base, Ottawa County has developed long-
term disposal capacity reserves at existing Type |l landfill facilities to ensure the proper
management of the solid waste stream generated within the County.

The primary use of these licensed disposal facilities and the reserve capacity is designed for the
disposal of solid wastes generated in Ottawa County. in consideration of existing markets within
the waste management industry and the movement of solid waste among counties, the Plan
recognizes certain counties in Michigan and therefore authorizes waste transfers to allow for the
effective, environmentally sound, and competitive management of the solid waste stream. By
designating those counties from which Ottawa County landfills can accept wastes, the County is
maintaining a proactive role in ensuring that its waste disposal needs are met and the long-term
solid waste management goals of the County are realized through the implementation of this Plan.
The Ottawa County Farms Landfill is authorized under an agreement with the County to receive
750,000 tons of Type Il and Type Il solid waste per year and the Autumn Hills Recycling and
Disposal Facility is authorized under an agreement with the County to receive 750,000 tons of
Type Il and Type Il solid waste per year. Copies of these agreements are provided in Attachment
D-2.

The counties listed in Table 3-A are authorized by Ottawa County to dispose of a combined total
of 1,500,000 tons per year of Type |l and Type lil solid wastes in licensed facilities in Ottawa
County, if authorized by the exporting County’s Solid Waste Management Plan. This allows the
private sector waste management companies to be competitive and to service clients based upon
market demand. Figure lll-1 shows the counties that import solid and special waste into Ottawa
County. Table 1-A shows the current import authorization volume. Table 1-B is the same as
Table 1-A because Ottawa County does not intend to site any new facilities.

Counties that import solid wastes from or export solid wastes to Ottawa County are to provide
a copy of the county’s approved Solid Waste Management Plan to the Ottawa County
Environmental Health Division when completed.

These arrangements are to be effective for five years or until this Plan is amended or updated.
The implementation of these arrangements will be through the reports prepared every six months
by the operators of the landfills in Ottawa County. The Ottawa County Environmental Health
Division will monitor the quantities and the county of origin for these wastes based upon these

reports.

-5
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Ottawa Allegan Barry Berrien Branch

Calhoun Cass Clare Clinton Eaton °
Gratiot lonia Isabella Kalamazoo | Kent

Lake Mason Mecosta Muskegon Montcaim

Newaygo Oceana Osceola St. Joseph Van Buren

.5 Export Authorization

Ottawa County authorizes the exportation of up to 100 percent of Ottawa County’s solid waste
to be exported to any of the counties listed below whose Solid Waste Management Plan
specifically authorizes the importation of Ottawa County Waste. Figure lll-1 shows the counties
that currently accept wastes from Ottawa County. Table 2-A shows the current export
authorization volume. Table 2-B is the same as Table 2-A because Ottawa County’s export
volume is not dependent upon new facilities being sited in any of the importing communities.

-6
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL RESOLUTION/AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Ottawa County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and disposal of
their own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the regulations and

planning requirements of Section I 5 3 9a of Part I 5, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act 1994 P.A. 451 as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that both the receiving and sending county's solid waste management
plan include statements as to where solid waste will be sent to and/or will be received from, before

waste can be transported between counties.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Ottawa County will agree to accept solid waste from Mason
County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long
as they are open to the publicand users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee
price structure. It is further agreed that Mason County is authorized to export up to 125,000 yards of

waste per year to Ottawa County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Mason County will agree to accept solid waste from Ottawa
County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long
as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee
price structure. It is further agreed that Ottawa County is authorized to export up to 125,000 yards of

waste per year to Mason County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this agreement may be terminated by either County upon
receipt of a mutuaily agreeable notice adequate to provide time for another method of primary

disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two years.

BE IT FURTHER .RESOLVED, that both Counties agree to assume their own and separate
liability, and assume financial responsibility for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at their own
cost, as would exist if this agreement had never been entered into.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each County's solid waste management plan shall authorize
the terms of this Resolution/Agreement.

FOR OTTAWA COUNTY FOR ON COUNTY
Chairman, Board of Commissioners Chairman, Board of Cominissioners
Date: Date: _219_"_27__
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL RESOLUTION/AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Ionia County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and disposal of their
own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the regulations and planning
requirements of Section II 5 3 9a of Part II 5, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural Resources
and Environmental Protection Act 1994 P.A. 451 as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that both the receiving and sending county's solid waste management

plan include statements as to where solid waste will be sent to and/or will be received from, before

waste can be transported between counties.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Ionia County will agree to accept solid waste from Mason
County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long
as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee
price structure. It is further agreed that Mason County is authorized to export up to 125,000 yards of

waste per year to Ionia County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Mason County will agree to accept solid waste from Ionia

County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long .

as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee
price structure. It is further agreed that lonia County is authorized to export up to 125,000 yards of

waste per year to Mason County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this agreement may be terminated by either County upon
receipt of a mutually agreeable notice adequate to provide time for another method of primary
disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that both Counties agree to assume their own and separate
liability, and assume financial responsibility for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at their own
cost, as would exist if this agreement had never been entered into.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each County's solid waste management plan shall authorize
the terms of this Resolution/Agreement.

FOR IONIA COUN . FOR MASON COUNTY

/
WP&M h C% % ,
Chairman, Board of Commissioners Chairman, goard of Comtnissioners
Date: S-6-1 7 Date: 3- 7—12
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL RESOLUTION/AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Washtenaw County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and disposal
of their own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the regulations and
planning requirements of Section II 5 3 9a of Part II 5, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act 1994 P.A. 451 as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that both the receiving and sending county's solid waste management
plan include statements as to where solid waste will be sent to and/or will be received from, before

waste can be transported between counties.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Washtenaw County will agree to accept solid waste from
Mason County for contingency disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long as they are
open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee price
structure. It is further agreed that Mason County is authorized to export up to 125,000 yards of waste
per year to Washtenaw County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Mason County will agree to accept solid waste from
Washtenaw County for contingency disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long as
they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee
price structure. It is further agreed that Washtenaw County is authorized to export up to 125,000
yards of waste per year to Mason County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this agreement may be terminated by either County upon
receipt of a mutually agreeable notice adequate to provide time for another method of primary
disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that both Countics agree to assume their own and separate
liability, and assume financial responsibility for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at their own
cost, as would exist if this agreement had never been entered into.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each County's solid waste management plan shall authorize
the terms of this Resolution/Agreement.

FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY §OR MASON COUN :

(A% Md ¢§ W\
Chairman, Board of Commissioners Chairman, Board of Commissioners
Date: Date: 3-7-77
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL RESOLUTION/AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Benzie County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and disposal of
their own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the regulations and
planning requirements of Section I 5 3 9a of Part II 5, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act 1994 P.A. 451 as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that both the receiving and sending county's solid waste management
plan include statements as to where solid waste will be sent to and/or will be received from, before
waste can be transported between counties.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Benzie County will agree to accept solid waste from Mason
County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long

as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee
price structure.

E IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Mason County will agree to accept solid waste from Benzie
County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long

as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee
price structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this agreement may be terminated by either County upon
receipt of a mutually agreeable notice adequate to provide time for another method of primary

disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two years.

BE IT THER RESOLVED, that both Counties agree to assume their own and separate
liability, and assume financial responsibility for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at their own

cost, as would exist if this agreement had never been entered into.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each County's solid waste management plan shall authorize
the terms of this Resolution/Agreement.

FOR BENZIE COUNTY FOR ON CO
Ty 77
Chairman, Board of Commissioners Chairman, Board of Coimmissioners

Date: Date;_$=13-97
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Osceola County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and disposal of.
their own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the regulations and
planning requirements of Section 11539a of Part 115, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act 1994 P.A. 451 as amended, and,

WHEREAS, The Act requires that both the receiving and sending county's solid waste management
plan include statements as to where solid waste will be sent to and/or will be received from, before

wastes can be transported between counties.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Osceola County will agree to accept solid waste from Mason
County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders so long
as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or tipping fee

price structure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT Mason County will agree to accept solid waste from
Osceola County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders
so long as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or

tipping fee price structure.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT This agreement may be terminated by either County upon

“receipt of a mutually agreeable notice adequate to provide time for another method of primary

disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT both Counties agree to assume their own and separate
liability, and assume financial responsibility for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at their own
cost, as would exist if this agreement had never been entered into.

FOR MASON COUNTY FOR OSCEOLA COUNTY
o 27/ s Aot
Chairman, Board of Commissioners Chairperson, Board of Commissioners
Date: 5-13-99 Date: /7'@ -7 J’/
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SOLID WASTE RECIPROCAL RESOLUTION/AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Montcalm County and Mason County are responsible for the collection and disposal of
their own respective solid waste, and both are Michigan counties subject to the regulations and
planning requirements of Section II 5 3 9a of Part II 5, Solid-Waste Management, of the Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act 1994 P.A. 451 as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that both the receiving and sending county's soiid waste management
plan include statements as to where solid waste will be sent to and/or will be received from, before

waste can be transported between counties.

THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED, Montcalm County will agree to accept solid waste from
Mason County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its borders
so long as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in services or
tipping fee price structure. It is further agreed that Mason County is authorized to export up to

125,000 yards of waste per year to Montcalm County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Mason County will agree to accept solid waste from
Montcalm County for primary and/or standby backup disposal in solid waste facilities within its
borders so long as they are open to the public and users will not be subject to discrimination in
services or tipping fee price structure. It is further agreed that Montcalm County is authorized to
export up to 125,000 yards of waste per year to Mason County. '

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this agreement may be terminated by either County upon
receipt of a mutually agreeable notice adequate to provide time for another method of primary
disposal. If adequate notice is not mutually agreed to, then adequate notice shall be two years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that both Counties agree to assume their own and separate
liability, and assume financial responsibility for payment of any damages, fines, etc., at their own
cost, as would exist if this agreement had never been entered into.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each County's solid waste management plan shall authorize
the terms of this Resolution/Agreement.

FORMASON COU

Commissioners Chairman, Board of Commissioners

Date: é / é ? ‘ Date: 5-37 q?
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ATTACHMENTS

Special Conditions

Special conditions affecting import or export of solid waste.

Mason County has limited the amount of waste that can be imported/exported between
Mason County and Ottawa, Montcalm or Washtenaw Counties to a maximum of 125,000

yards per year.

D-6
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LOCAL UNITS OF GOVERNMENT RESOLUTIONS OF SUPPORT

The following Mason County local units of Government passed resolutions approving the
Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan Update.

Mason County Board of Commissioners
Amber Township Board
Branch Township Board
Custer Township Board
Village of Custer Council
Eden Township Board

Free Soil Township Board
Village of Free Soil Council
Village of FountainCouncil
10. Grant Township Board

11. Hamlin Township Board

12. Logan Township Board

13. Ludington City Commission
14. Meade Township Board

15. Pere Marquette Charter Township Board
16. Riverton Township Board
17. Scottville City Commission
18. Sheridan Township Board
19. Sherman Township Board
20. Summit Township Board
21. Victory Township Board

VXA bW~

The following Mason County local units of Government passed resolutions disapproving
the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan Update:

None.

Copies of the resolutions passed by each local unit of government in Mason County are
attached.
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omas M. Posma
Chairman

nald E. Sanders
Vice Chairman

in J. Anthony
County Clerk

bian L. Knizacky
Administrator

rold Madden
District 1

chael G. Schneider
District 2

hn E. Henderson
District 3

imes L. Pinkerton
District 4

g ybicki

%\:_h....rlct 5

homas M. Posma
District 6

harles Eberbach
District 7

onald E. Sanders
District 8

‘'obert A. Genson
District 9

Mason County
Board of Commissioners

Court House

304 E. Ludington Ave., Ludington, Michigan 49431

(231) 843-7999 » Fax (231) 843-1972

APPROVAL OF UPDATE TO THE MASON COUNTY SOLID
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Mason County Board of Commissioners designated the
Mason County Administrator’s office to be the Designated Planning Agency
to prepare the update to the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan
under the provisions of Part 115, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, and

WHEREAS, the Mason County Administrator’s office and the Mason
County Solid Waste Management Planning Committee have prepared the

Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Mason County Solid Waste Management Planning
Committee did approve the Plan at a meeting held on December 28, 1999 and
is recommending that the Board of Commissioners approve the Plan and
forward it to the various municipalities within the County for their approval.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
County of Mason approves the update to the Mason County Solid Waste
Management Plan and directs that the Plan be forwarded by the County
Administrator to the various municipalities within the County for their

approval.
7
//gﬁ‘ - TA
I

Moved for approval.

,/mrrf

| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true >
and correct copy of the racord on fne g é
with the Mason County Clerk, -

This Certified Cooy Only

VALID When [FEAL AND §3D
&\sas NATUHE Are Atfixed.
Y A -13-80

AN J. ARTHONY
MASCN COYnTY CLaay
]
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

)
By action of t@ormnission/Council of &/WM

(C'@illage)
Itis hereby resolved that we W the Mason County Solid Waste

Approve isproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

A
J
N‘/““) 2 K epevpsrt

propréate Lécal Representative

Witnéssed by v J
oscanss S).500Y
Dated/ / e
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of ___BRANCH Township
: (City/Township/Village)

Itis hereby resolved that we__2pproved the Mason County Solid Waste
(ApprovedlDlsproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental

Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Admihistrative Rules.

A LA

Appropn Loc epresentatxve

March 9,2000
Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

2
By action of the Board/Commission/Council of K SNl
‘ (City/Township/Village)
It is hereby resolved that wegﬁpf cved. the Mason County Solid Waste

(Approved/Disproved)
Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

/'y/w é,o_ 70)/0?/52{

Appropnate Lécal Represent)atwe

/

///
‘L / //c )%( —\_/
Witnessed by
P /{ / ?éf?@
Dated .
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

N / 19z} 7)
By action of the Board/Commission/Council of Z{LZ/ 7[6!; i (Z;MLZQ/
(City/Towfiship/ Village)

It is hereby resolved that we__ /2 £ »p-¢ .~ the Mason County Solid Waste
(Apér{)ved/Disproved) -

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental

Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

A
/p/ %f ¢ LY)%A/(/ pY3Y

Appropriate Local Representative

) 7
7 . é‘ . . )
‘ /)L(M casc f-‘J/u e LK LAl

Witnesse;iT by
& - /- Jeco
Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of tHe Board/Gommission/Council of 6‘ Q/ Lo
(City/Township/Viillage)

It is hereby resolved that we g@_ﬂ 7107’ KO//M':};(; Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/pPisproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

Appropriate Local Representative

\J (Q_'M _Su @Jl/\uf;zm

Witnessed by

Q//‘?»@a

Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

S—” \ N
By action of the Board/Commission/Council of Tveceo b N \!\‘Q\ﬁ 'R
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we Aﬁmy S\NE the Mason County Solid Waste
(Ap}}éved/Disprovcd)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental

Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

. . %\x’?q; \-,\\gg Y
Appropriate Local Representative
/Z/LL’LLJ jéxzé/z (/{W/é ¢ /&é_,_
Witnessed by i

T\J A ADNCO
Date
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE {
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN ) ‘

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of
(City?’TownsHip/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental

Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

(,JW%@&Q 9,

Appropriate Local Representative

itnessed by ‘

“harck_ 15 2000

Dated
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RECEIVED

MAR 2 7 2000

MASON COUNTY
DEPT OF PUBLIC WORKS

RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL
OF AMENDMENT 97-1 TO THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

B - B . : . - )

y action of the Board/Council of ___ E Q Lﬁ[}wlécé%gfvm%éfm .

It is hereby resolved that we -""@ﬁ%%}}%ﬁ%ngaw-- Amendment 97-1
\

to the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan, prepared pursuant

to Part 115 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act,
being Public Act 451 of 1994, as amended, and the rules promulgated

thereunder, for Mason County.

-
r

~
'L_/ "':/ % o%;/rzﬁf - OL’NZ/(

Apf)};"oplﬁ

RoHty
g\u A -__Q_J! il lnd -
ifnesséed by
______ (‘__:___g:_-___QQQ-______-
afe
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of zf Q{Mﬁ i: QU[Z{[ZLML/‘%Z
. (City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we Q/%/Z/ZLQ_ the Mason County Solid Waste
(Ap;/aréved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

opnate Local Representatlve

MQ/Z d ﬂ@ 412 m Lzﬁ,é,

Wltfxesse

W/am}l [, 2000

Dateé
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of ___Township of Hamlin
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we Approved the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

\ ‘ \ n
Qd@ T \ R, Qd\dqéé\

Appropnate Local Repres ntative

"4 775//14 Q/

Wltnessed by / Z/
/

l

YQ_)\“'\M Q./\,Au)(\ { LJ \ (.9 ce -
Dated R
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of é O S W
) (City/T. &wnshipN illage)

It is hereby resolved that we A PinYad) JQ—-CK the Mason County Solid Waste
(AEpFoved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to .the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

Rouceen Bl
NIDLp 0 6& L K e

Appropriate Local Representative

(Dl (o

Witnessed by

_Q— 9;‘%* évOOo

Dated
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CITY OF LUDINGTON

201 SOUTH WILLIAM STREET

( AROL POMORSKI, MAYOR

JAMES H. MILLER, CITY MANAGER LUDINGTON, MICHIGAN 49431
GERRY PEHRSON KLAFT, CITY CLERK . PHONE (616) B45-6237
MARY REEDS-MORTENSEN, CITY TREASURER FAX (616) 845-1146

RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the B‘dhfd’/@’bmssi'OWCouncxl of _Ludington
(City/T ownsh]p/V illage)

It is hereby resolved that we__approved the Mason County Sclic Wasie
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

C
/}Q//m@// Loy Z%/é

Appropriate Local Representative é”cZ} Lok

Rachdd D Sbodl,
Witnessed by
:;/5/4&

Dated

245
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of "mp (LJ‘Q‘
(City/'l‘ownship/v illage)

1t is hereby resolved that we OJ‘O‘Q/LO-(»Q(Q the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

ilhiy el

Appropriade Local Representatiﬁ

Ao Flesadion (

Witnessed T)y

2/ 14 /2020

Dated
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Pare Marquette Charter Township

| 1699 South Pere Marquette Hwy. Ludington, Michigan 49431
(616) 845-1277  Fax (616) 843-3330

March 1, 2000

Fabian L. Knizacky

Mason County Administrator
304 E. Ludington Avenue
Ludington, MI 49431

Dear Fabian:

During a regular meeting of the Pere Marquette Charter Township Board held last evening, the
following resolution was adopted concerning the Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan.

( "Resolved by Messer, seconded by Jansen to approve the Mason County Solid Waste

\._ . Management Plan, 1998 Update, draft date December 28, 1999, prepared pursuant to the Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act, PA 451 of 1994 as amended (NREPA), Part 115,
Solid Waste Management, and its Administrative Rules.

Resolution adopted . . all aye"

_Sincerely,

Joanne Kelley, CMC
Township Clerk

cc. PM Planning Commission
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of __Twp . of Riverton
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we_approved the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,
and its Administrative Rules.

. N ™~ \
RO U RN e Ny

Rita A, Johnson, Clerk
Appropriate Local Representative

->7/0«¢4// : )Z,/ r/ﬂ&

’

Witnessed by

February 7, 2000
Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of __ Scottville
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we__approved the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

V//)/nw S. @4@ Ll ]
Appropriaté Local Representative W

Ciherate () Moo

Witnessed by

5]7/on

Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of J/h?/?'d an Zownh S/u7;0
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we app/‘OVCc/ the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental -

Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

Z 4 !M e;mﬁé gégglg_z zz'Ci
Appropriate Local Representative

Cobisy, 7 S o T

Witnessed by

Z/ 16 [oo
Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of SHERMAN TOWNSHTP
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we Approved the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

%17& %%/ , Twp, Supv.

Appropn’aggf%cal Re%entative

4@;@2 %,Nﬁ(( y Twp. Treasurer

Witnessed by

February 15, 2000
Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of Scumm T Jow. shep
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we__/#/47200 & the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental

A 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

%'7%{/4/ \%Za, bsLtL(/M (S 2P

Appropriate Local Representatlve/

Witnesse

AR-07-00C

Dated
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RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MASON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

By action of the Board/Commission/Council of _ VICTORY TOWNSHIP
(City/Township/Village)

It is hereby resolved that we_APPROVED the Mason County Solid Waste
(Approved/Disproved)

Management Plan, prepared pursuant to the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA), Part 115, Solid Waste Management,

and its Administrative Rules.

Appropriate Local Representative

3 c?ou()W\L 5

Witnessedby ° ¢
2- 7- 00
Dated

253





